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Chairman’s Message

The COVID-19 global pandemic threw a curved ball at us all and we consider

ourselves fortunate to have fared better than many other industries during this time. We had thought
that the worst was over. However, with the second wave of the pandemic, it is now clear that we are still
very far from returning to what we all knew as “normal”.

In our 27-year history, we have faced many challenges; each time, we have adapted to the changing
needs of the company, clients and the market to keep moving forward. Despite the constantly evolving
COVID-19 situation, we have been able to achieve significant milestones, formulate effective strategies,
and implement new ideas that help our customers, partners and employees.

As an industry in Nepal, we are growing and maturing. The insurance sector’s contribution to the
GDP has grown from 2.6% last year to 3.47% this year. Another positive indicator of the general
direction and growth of our sector is that the total number of insurance policies issued by the
non-life insurance sector increased by 22%. Furthermore, there has been substantial, year-on-
year, increase in premiums collected. At the same time, directives from Beema Samiti continue to
broaden the industry and its reach.

All of these facts indicate that insurance penetration in our country is moving in a positive direction. As
a company, we recognize that this is a dynamic, changeable, and opportune time to be in the insurance
industry in Nepal. With that in mind, we have changed our approach, processes and training to be more
future-focused, innovative and efficient. This means the experience and outcomes are better for our
customers and us alike.

With a gross written premium of Rs.1.39 billion (1arba 39 crores) for the year 2019/20, we

recorded a 5% market share in the Non-Life Insurance sector. We have always believed that prompt
and fair claim settlement is a key aspect of the service we provide; with the support of our long-

term reinsurance partners, we have settled claims worth Rs. 384 million (38.4 crores) in the financial
year 2019/20.

We at HGI have always been committed to putting our customers first and providing services and
products that matter to them. We see our investments in technology and human resources as central to
HGI’s future-readiness so that we not only serve our current customers but are equipped to meet the
needs of our customers of the future as well.

So, while on one hand we move cautiously as the challenges from the pandemic still very much exist, on
the other hand, we are excited and energized by the growth and opportunities that the Nepal non-
life insurance sector has to offer.

[ would like to thank all stakeholders for your support and look forward to growing together in the
coming years.

Thank You,

Mahendra Krishna Shrestha
Chairman






CEO’s Prospective

| wish to express my warm gratitude to all members of our Board of Directors, Shareholders, Insured, my
colleagues, Beema Samiti and all the concerned authorities for their continuous support to make Himalayan
General Insurance one of the most trustworthy non-life insurance companies in Nepalese insurance market
for 27 years.

The global pandemic of Covid 19 has affected entire economy in the world; so, has to the Insurance Industry
in Nepal. In the beginning, it was uncertain as to when the economy will be back to normal, which it

still is not though. With roll out of vaccines, the uncertainty has turned into optimism to certain extent.

The pandemic has led to significant change in customer behavior, accustoming them to move to online
platforms. Though no one still have an answer on how the shift of customer behavior will be in days to come.
This means the recovery period of pandemic may have us full of surprises. To catch up with the change in
customer behavior, we are working on digital technology-based end-to-end processes for a complete online
experience of our products and services to clients.

The global pandemic has compelled us to adopt work from home culture. With our latest insurance
software, we successfully coped with the situation and ran the business continuously during lockdown.
Deployment of software is almost complete and it has helped us in implementing data-based decision-
making.

This year during lockdown and afterward, we held numerous online internal and external trainings on
products and services and soft skills to our colleagues, which helped them a lot to enhance knowledge
and efficiency. Priority on training to the employees will be continued as part of our strategy to enhance
performance, teamwork and innovative delivery of services. We believe it will help us to stay as customer
oriented non-life insurance company in Nepal market.

In last couple of years, the penetration of insurance has increased in non-life insurance market of Nepal,
specifically due to Agriculture and Cattle, Micro Insurance, Medical, Motor and recently introduced Covid
Insurance. Nepalese Insurance Market is in the growing trend. To capitalize this growing trend of market, we
strive to maintain our competitive advantage in providing quality products and prompt claims services with
innovative technology and easy accessibility to the clients.

Along with unparalleled best service we have been providing to vast corporate client base, we have been
gradually shifting the paradigm of focus to personal line retail market such as Agriculture, Cattle and Micro
Insurance through digital distribution channel for higher market penetration. Trust, this initiation will lead
us to create best values to all our stakeholders in coming days.

Thank you,

Sushil Bajracharya
CEO
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Annual Report presented by the Chairman,
Mr. Mahendra Krishna Shrestha, on behalf of
the Board of Directors at the 27th Annual General Meeting

Respected Shareholders,

We, on behalf of the Board of Directors of Himalayan General Insurance Company Limited, cordially welcome all
shareholders and invitees to the 27th Annual General Meeting of the company.

We are pleased to share the Annual Report for the Financial Year 2076-77 (Financial Year 2019-20) on behalf of
the Board of Directors of the company.

Today’s presentation of the 27th Annual report of the company prepared pursuant to section 109 of the
Companies Act, 2063 for the Financial Year 2076-77 includes the Auditor’s Report, Balance Sheet, Profit and
Loss Account, Cash Flow Statement and annexures forming part of the Financial Statements, along with special
purpose Financial Statements as per the directives of the Insurance Board, the company’s current financial year
activities & future action plans, as well as the Director’s Report.

1. Financial Results:

FY 2076-77 FY 2075-76 Difference

Particulars

1 No of Policies Issued 59,584 61,333 -2.85%
2 Gross Premium Income 1,397,390,805 1,459,031,800 -4.22%
3 Net Premium Income 261,280,610.0 279,217,218 -6.42%
4 Reinsurance Commission Income 129,505,465 142,039,030 -8.82%
5 No of Claims Paid 4,432.00 5,829.00 -23.97%
6 Gross Claims Paid 384,156,546 941,894,017 -59.21%
7 Net Claims Paid 135,325,127 175,172,668 -22.75%
8 Outstanding Claim (in Number) 920.00 1,053.00 -12.63%
9 Outstanding Claim 95,208,647.00 108,613,859.10 -12.34%
10 | Employee Expenses 117,429,062 108,600,649 8.13%
11 | Other Expenses 94,656,755 93,711,082 1.01%
12 Income from Investment 187,095,982 180,559,508 3.62%
13 Net Profit (as per NFRS) 171,779,777 236,011,382 -27.22%
14 | Investment 2,690,028,153 1,977,979,183 36.00%
15 | Net-Worth (as per NFRS) Excluding 1,826,013,626 1,694,305,142 7.77%
Deferred Tax
16 | Net-worth Per Share 170.93 164.94 3.63%
17 | EPS 16.08 22.98 -30.01%
18 | Solvency Margin 3.63 3.06 18.49%

a. Premium income:
Though the company’s gross premium income and net premium income has decreased due to decrease
in top line sales, there has been slight increase in retail business this year. The Covid Pandemic and
subsequent lock downs also played a significant role in decrement of policies and premium income
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b. Re-insurance commission income:
Re-insurance income has largely stayed the same; the decrement of 8.82% is due to booking of deferral
commission income from 2074-75 amounting to Rs. 47.3 million in 2075-76.

¢. Claims
The company’s figures for claims paid in number and amount has seen a decrement of 23.97% and
59.21% due to decrement in claim settlement that year due to lockdown. However, there has also been
decrement in outstanding claims by 12% in number and in amount.

d. Investment income:
The company has achieved an investment income of Rs.187.095 million (18 crore 70 lakhs) in FY 2019-
20 as against Rs. 180.55 million (18crore 05 lakhs) in FY 2018-2019. This represents an increase of 3.62%.
Despite fall in the interest rate, our investment income has increased due to increase in investment
amount.

e. Employee expenses and other expenses:
The company’s employee expenses and other expenses has seen 8.13% and 1.01% increase in FY 2019-20
compared to 2018-19. Increase in employee expenses is due to increase in no of employees and employee
allowances.

f. Net profit:
During the FY 2019-20, net profit has decreased by 27.22% (to Rs. 171.77 million (17 crore 17 lakhs) from
Rs. 236.01 million (23 crore 60 lakhs)). The main reason for the decrease of net profit is due to decrease
in net premium and reinsurance commission income; increase in management expenses and other
expenses as well as lockdowns have also played a role in decrement of profit.

g. Net-worth:
The company’s net worth (net of deferred tax and fair-value) per share in FY 2019-20 has increased to
Rs170.93 from Rs164.94 in 2018-19.

h. Solvency Margin:
The solvency ratio is the measurement of the company’s ability to meet its operational obligations
and short term and long-term liabilities. As per solvency margin directive issued by Beema Samiti, the
solvency ratio of the company should be more than 1.5. Our solvency margin at 3.63 is well above the
prescribed minimum

Review of Previous Year's Performance 2076-77 (Financial Year 2019-20):

The company’s market share in Financial Year 2019-20 among general insurance companies, was 5%. The
company recorded a Gross Direct Premium of Rs. 1.39 billion (1 arba 39 crore) in FY 2019-20 as compared to
Rs.1.45 billion (1 arba 45 crore) in FY 2018-19.

The major premium contributor for 2019-20 was the miscellaneous portfolio which comprises primarily of
GPA, HIP, Medical, Burglary, All Risk, Group Hospital, and International Travel. This portfolio contributed 51%
to our gross premium income as compared to 32% in the previous year. Specifically, Fire, Marine, Motor,
Engineering, Agriculture, Micro and Aviation portfolios contributed 9%, 1%, 17%, 13%, 4%, 3% and 2%
respectively in the FY 2019 - 2020.

Gross Claim Settlement during the FY 2019 - 20 was Rs.384 million (38 crore 41 lakh) as compared to Rs. 941
million (94 crore 18 lakh) in FY 2018 - 19. With the continued support from our reinsurance partners, we are
able to consistently settle claims promptly, which is at the core of our promise to our customers.

The company is operating at a loss ratio of 45.47% in FY 2020 as compared to 49.47 % in FY 2019. The loss
ratio has been calculated based on net premium earned and net claim incurred.
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Gross Premium Income:

Line of Business FY 2076-77 ‘Weightage‘ A (%) ‘ FY 2075-76 ‘ Weightage ‘ A (%)

Fire 130,258,811 9% 8% 120,957,632 8% -1%
Marine 12,818,586 1% -63% 34,794,656 2% 54%
Motor 232,955,122 17% -4% 242,989,593 17% -2%
Engineering 175,296,890 13% -32% 257,366,542 18% 9%
Agricultural 35,228,528 4% 27% 27,838,279 2% -27%
Miscellaneous 724,381,763 51% 56% 464,030,362 32% 43%
Micro 30.901.866 3%  7384% 412,928 0% 695%
Aviation 55,549,239 2% -82% 310,641,808 21% 58%
1,397,390,805 100% 1,459,031,800 100%

Gross Claim Settlement:

Line of Business |  FY 2076-77 Weig,z;age FY2075-76 | Weightage | A (%)
Fire 43,163,911 1%  251% 12,279,931 -92% 1%
Marine 819,128 0%  -91% 8,928,661 50% 1%
Motor 85,793,534 2% -23% 111,152,713 15% 12%
Engineering 2,265,794 1% -25% 3,019,699 -99% 0%
Agricultural 30,736,830 8%  -27% 42,107,264 13% 4%
Miscellaneous 75,019,321 20% 7% 80,529,446  -97% 9%
Micro 304,008 0%  -30% 436,330 0% 0%
Aviation 146,054,020 38%  -79% 683,439,974  177% 73%
Total 384,156,546 100% 941,894,018 100

Re-insurance:
The company has reinsurance treaty with the following reinsurance companies:

General Insurance Corporation of India, India

Trust International Insurance and Reinsurance Company, Bahrain
Zep Re (PTA Reinsurance Company), Kenya

Kenya Reinsurance Corporation Ltd., Kenya

East Africa Reinsurance Corporation Ltd., Kenya
The New India Assurance Company Limited, India
XL Catlin, India

Royal Insurance Corporation of Bhutan., Bhutan
GIC Bhutan Reinsurance Company Limited, Bhutan
Asian Reinsurance Company Limited, Thailand
Bupa, UK

Sirius International, Bermuda

Nepal Reinsurance Company Ltd., Nepal
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Impact of National and International Events on the Company’s Business:
COVID-19 has presented severe challenges to every industry, including the insurance industry.

Despite the ongoing difficulties with the pandemic, some progress has continued to be made in the insurance
industry during these challenging times. On the whole, market penetration has increased, reaching new individuals
as well as new areas of Nepal. In line with the new federal structure of the country, the company plans to open
provincial offices in all seven provinces which will further expand it's reach and the reach of insurance services.

The steady growth of the insurance sector is attracting more investors into the industry. Despite the
mandatory hike in paid-up capital, new players continue to eagerly enter the market while existing
companies work to further strengthen their position.

Special Note on the Impact of Covid-19:

The first case of COVID-19 in Nepal was confirmed on 23rd January 2020; by March 24th 2020, the rise in
number of cases had led to a nationwide lockdown which ended on 21st July 2020. The pandemic and
subsequent lockdowns and protective measures have had significant impact on our society, business, and
economy as a whole; both life and non-life sectors within the insurance industry have been heavily impacted.

These unprecedented challenges forced us to come together as a focused, adaptable and innovative team
as we found ways to continue operations safely. While supporting a work from home environment for our
team, we also found new ways of reaching out to our customers.

Investments we had made in technological and team initiatives long before the pandemic hit turned out to
be just-in-time, making many essential opportunities available to us during the COVID-19 events. With the
recently implemented web-based software and through VPN network, we were quickly able to implement
a“work from home” environment with minimal business disruption. Our tie-ups with various e-wallets

like E-sewa and Khalti came in use at the right time for us and we were able to utilize these platforms for
premium payments seamlessly and ahead of many of our competitors.

Achievements since the last fiscal year till preparation of the Annual Report and Future Plans:
The comparative premium underwritten during the fiscal year 2077-78 is tabulated below:

S.No | Particulars FY 2077-78 (up to Chaitra) FY 2076-77(up to Chaitra)
1 Gross Premium Income 91,85,14,730 863,018,630
Future Plan:

As we look ahead into Financial Year 2077-78 /2020-2021, the effects of COVID-19 will likely continue for
most of the year and we have to continue to innovate and find new ways to effectively operate in this
challenging environment as well as serve our customers promptly.

We continue to march ahead with our Vision 2030 and endeavor to incorporate this aspect into all our
future planning:

Delighted Customer

Data Driven Decision Making

Accessible and Affordable Insurance to All

Preferred Job Destination

BeinTop 3

eI

As a team, we are focused on consistently moving in this direction and increasing our capability to meet this
vision. At the same time, we continue to steadily expand our branch network and increase our retail lines.
With strengthening market positioning and risk acceptance in mind, the company is planning to explore
merger/acquisition. We have also started construction of new building from Poush, 2077 which is expected
to be complete by the end of 2079
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Industrial and Business relations:

As a company, we are committed to strengthening the relationships within and between our teams as that
is critical to our future growth strategy and direction. We are also continuing our focus on bringing in new
talent who are aligned with the company’s values and goals. In addition, we continue to conduct training
and capacity building exercises to help our teams do their best

Changes in the Board of Directors and Senior Management:
There has been no change in the Board of Directors and senior management of the company during FY 2076-77.

Major Factors affecting Business:

a. New Entrants:
With the entrance of new insurance companies in the market, price competition in the industry has
increased in the retail market as well as in the corporate category.

b. Dynamism in social and economic sector:
The change in the federal structure has increased the urgency for insurance companies to increase reach
quickly.

Fluctuations in the financial sector also impact the insurance sector, although insurance companies can
help create more liquidity and mobilize savings. As an institutional investor, the insurance industry makes
an invaluable contribution to the development and better working of the capital market

¢. Awareness of people:
Insurance is not widely considered an essential beneficiary purchase here in Nepal; hence insurance
is primarily done to fulfil requirements. Education of the market on the widespread benefits and
effectiveness of insurance is still an ongoing task.

d. Digitalization:
The convenience and efficiency of online and mobile channels, coupled with the commoditization of
the core insurance product, has led insurance customers to seek a new experience for interacting with
their insurance company. Going forward, the industry will need greater focus on individual customer
experience and ease. In this environment, an effective omni-channel strategy will be key, as will an
insurer’s capabilities around self-service.

Dividend:

We have generated higher profit as per NFRS as compared to GAAP. However, as per Beema Samiti’s circular,
excess profitin NFRS has to be allocated to Regulatory Reserve. Keeping this constraint in mind, we have
proposed cash dividend of 3.75% amounting to Rs. 40,060,800 and bonus share @ 3% amounting to Rs.
32,048,700.

Appointment/ Re- appointment of Auditor:

The Board expressed its sincere gratitude to M/S Sundar & co. for successfully conducting statutory audit
for the fiscal year 2076-77. We are saddened to also inform you that our External Auditor, Mr. Sundar Man
Shrestha, passed away soon after finalising our audit report for the year 2019-20. We offer our sincere
condolences to his family.

For the next fiscal year 2077-78, as per recommendation from the Audit Committee, company has proposed
M/s N. Amatya & Co. as its Statutory and Tax auditor.

Share Capital:
The company’s paid-up share capital in the year under review is Rs.1.068288 arba. The company has
maintained the paid-up share capital limit of Rs. 1 arba as per the directive issued by Beema Samiti.
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11. Provisions related to section 109 (4) Companies Act, 2063 (first amendments, 2074):

a. Details of Forfeited Shares:
Company has not forfeited any shares till the reporting date.

b. Disclosure of transaction with Subsidiary/ Associates:
Company has no Subsidiary/ Associates till the reporting date.

¢. Information provided by the Principal Shareholders in the last fiscal year:
No such information was provided during the reporting period.

d. Disclosure on the share transaction & ownership by the Board Members and Employees of the
Company in the last fiscal year:
None

e. Disclosure of information on involvement of any Board Member or their Close Relatives having
personal interest on any agreement done by the company during the last fiscal year:
None

f. Disclosure on Shares buy back of the company:
None.

g. Internal Control System, Risk Management system & its effectiveness:
The internal control system of the company is designed in such a way to achieve following organizational
objectives:

a. operational effectiveness and efficiency,
b. reliable financial reporting and
c. compliance with laws, regulations and policies.

At the organizational level, the company has formed Internal Audit Committee headed by public director
Mr. Ajay Ratna Sthapit. The company has appointed an independent Chartered Accountant firm M/s G.P.
Rajbahak & Co as Internal Auditor. The internal audit report issued by the internal auditor is presented to the
Audit Committee for discussion. The comments and suggestions from the consultant and Audit Committee
has been implemented regularly. The company strongly believes that, the implementation of suggestions of
internal audit report strengthens the overall internal control system of the organization. Company has been
following the Corporate Governance Directive, 2075 issued by the Insurance Board. It has helped to make
the internal control system more effective.

The company believes that, it has followed the risk minimization approach through its effective internal
control system. It has also formed a Risk Management Committee for effective management of risk. Further,
the company has made its compliance officer more accountable for internal risk management.

h. Disclosure on the total Management expenses on last fiscal year:
The company has spent Rs. 152,502,190 (one hundred fifty-two million, five hundred two thousand and
one hundred ninety rupees only) as total management expenses in the FY 2076-77.

i. Details of members of Audit committee, their remuneration, allowances and facilities, action taken,
and any recommendations made by the committee:
In the review period, company has constituted 3 members audit committee under the chairmanship of
public director Mr. Ajay Ratna Sthapit, and independent director Mr. Dasarath Lal Shrestha & promoter
director, Mr. Vijit Krishna Shrestha, as members. The meeting fee for each audit committee meeting has
been fixed at Rs.7,000 (seven thousand).
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The actions made by the audit committee are as follows,

1. Review of Statutory Audit Report and recommended to management for the improvements,
as required.

2. Review of Internal Audit Report and recommend to management for the improvements,
as required.

3. Recommend the appointment of Statutory Auditor to the AGM.

4. Review of Internal Control System of the company and provide suggestions for improvement.

j. Disclosure on amount receivables from Directors, Managing Directors, CEO, Company’s Principal
Shareholders or any firm, company or any other organization associated with such individuals or
their close relatives:

None.

k. Disclosures on Salary, Allowances and facilities provided to the Directors, Managing Directors, CEO
and other employees:

S.N. Particulars Other (up to Assistant Manager)
1. Salary 2,460,000 12,561,813
2. Allowances 840,000 5,748,236
3. Provident Fund 246,000 1,093,841
4, Dashain Allowances 205,000 1,041,875

Vehicle with Driver, Fuel, insurance,
5. Others Telephone and bonus as per Act
and as per the term of contract.

Vehicle, Fuel, insurance, Telephone
and bonus as per Act

I. Remaining Dividend amount to be claimed by shareholders:
None.

m. Disclosure on purchase and sale of property as per clause 141:
None.

n. Disclosure on transaction between associated companies as per clause 175:
None.

0. Any other details to be disclosed in the report as per the companies act and existing laws:
(Company is having a market share of 5% (approx) in the general insurance industry.) market share

p. Disclosure on the provision of the directive 86 as per Companies Directives. 2072:
The company has been abiding by the provision made in the company’s directives 2072.

g. Other issues:
Company has paid total direct and indirect taxes of Rs. 258,101,319 to the Government of Nepal. The
details of which are presented below:

Income Tax | Rs. 75,620,841
Tax Deducted at Source Rs. 30,150,353
Value Added Tax Rs. 152,330,125
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12. Conclusion:
We would like to express our sincere gratitude to Government of Nepal, Insurance Board, and Office of
Company Registrar, Nepal Rastra Bank, Securities Board of Nepal, Nepal Stock Exchange Limited, CDS and
Clearing Limited, Inland Revenue Department, NMB Capital Ltd, stock brokers, commercial / development
banks and finance companies and our clients and well-wishers who have helped us directly or indirectly in
the growth of company. Also, we would like to express our sincere gratitude to our agents and surveyors.

The efforts shown by all the employees of the company during the period is highly praiseworthy; a special
mention to them for their commitment to serve.

We would like to thank all the shareholders and other attendees present in the AGM for your valuable
presence and active participation

Thank You,
Ajaya Ratna Sthapit, Mahendra Krishna Shrestha
Director Chairman

Date: 2078-01-17
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SUNDAR & CO. Pulchowk ( Machagaa) . Phone # (977-1) 5521804/5529942

Lalitpur 20/8 Gha Fax : 977-1-5524804
Chartered Accountants P.0.B 3102 Kathmandu, Nepal Email: sundarmans@gmail.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF HIMALAYAN GENERAL INSURANCE CO. LTD.

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of HIMALAYAN GENERAL INSURANCE CO.
LTD. (herein after referred to as "the Company"”), which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as
at 31 Ashadh 2077 corresponding to 15 July 2020, Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
company as of 31 Ashadh 2077 (15 July, 2020), and its financial performances, changes in equity and
its cash flows for the year ended on that date in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
(NFRS) as mentioned under section (b) of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
(Insurance Act /and Company Act)

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the
ethical requirement that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audlt evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Management’s Responsibility and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of ‘hese financial statements in
accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS), and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

In preparing the financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
company or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the company'’s financial reporting
process.

Page 10f3
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than the one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omission, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
controls.

« Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the internal controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Page 2 of 3
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Insurance Act / and Company Act)

On examination of the financial statements as aforesaid, we report that:

a.

b.

We have obtained all information and explanations asked for, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our examination.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company, in
so far as appears from our examination of those books of account and the financial statements
dealt with by this report are prepared in conformity with the NFRS based format prescribed by
Insurance Board.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us
and from our examination of the books of account of the company, we have not come across
the cases where the Board of Directors or any member thereof or any employee of the
company has acted contrary to the provisions of the law relating to accounts or caused loss or
damage to the company or committed any misappropriation of the fund of the company nor
have been informed of any such case by the management.

We have issued another audit opinion in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSA-
800), “Special Considerations- Audit of financial statements prepared in Accordance with
Special Purpose Frameworks” reporting on the financial statements prepared in accordance
with directions issued by the Insurance Board.

In our opinion and to the best of our information, the company has performed its works in
compliance with the directives issued by the Insurance Board.

For Sundar & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
UDIN # 210221CA00225ZYe82

e
CA. Anfla Shrestha

Partner
ICAN COP Number: 183
Kathmandu

Date: February 21, 2021

- Falgun 9,2077
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Annexurel

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

HIMALAYAN GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED

AS AT ASHADH 31, 2077 (JULY 15, 2020)

Annual Report 2076/77

Amountin NRs.

Notes As at Ashadh 31, 2077 As at Ashadh 31, 2076
(July 15, 2020) (July 16,2019)
ASSETS
Intangible assets 4 5,926,135 1,736,477
Property, plant and equipment 5 55,418,008 63,477,073
Investment properties 6 - -
Deferred tax assets 7 - 34,109,930
Investment in subsidiaries 8 - -
Investment in associates 9 - -
Investments 10 2,690,028,153 1,977,979,183
Loans 11 - -
Reinsurance assets 12 2,142,966,922 2,091,162,235
Current tax assets (net) 21 16,567,182 8,943,803
Insurance receivables 13 96,650,614 189,011,516
Other assets 14 40,995,855 6,037,863
Other financial assets 15 187,427,337 19,989,948
Cash and cash equivalents 16 285,439,474 325,766,780
TOTAL ASSETS 5,521,419,680 4,718,214,808
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capital 17(a) 1,068,288,000 1,027,200,000
Share application money pending allotment 17(b) - -
Share premium 17(c) - 36,292,137
Insurance fund 17(d) 561,934,372 476,337,405
Catastrophe reserves 17(e) 51,157,286 42,723,770
Retained earnings 17(f) 77,981,175 46,946,684
Other equity 17(9) 566,998,422 119,650,263
TOTAL EQUITY 2,326,359,255 1,749,150,259
LIABILITIES
Provisions 18 21,689,733 (624,921)
Gross insurance contract liabilities 19 2,398,591,286 2,362,292,260
Deferred tax liabilities 7 154,602,727 -
Insurance payables 20 477,221,132 462,222,766
Current tax liabilities (net) 21 - -
Loans and borrowings 22 - -
Other financial liabilities 23 43,038,665 44,835,245
Other liabilities 24 99,916,882 100,339,199
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,195,060,425 2,969,064,549
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 5,521,419,680 4,718,214,808
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
For and on behalf of Himalayan General Insurance Company Limited
Mahendra Krishna Shrestha Bikram Krishna Shrestha Vijit Krishna Shrestha Ajaya Ratna Sthapit Nura Kumari Sharma
Chairman Director Director Director Director
Dashrath Lal Shrestha Sushil Bajracharya Dhruba Pd. Neupane Anila Shrestha,
FCA, AFCA
Director Chief Executive Officer Deputy General Manager Sundar & Co.

Place: Kathmandu
Date: 2077/11/03
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED ASHADH 31, 2077 (JULY 15, 2020)

Amountin NRs.

For the year ended
As at Ashadh 31,2077 As at Ashadh 31, 2076
(July 15, 2020) (July 16, 2019)
INCOME
Gross earned premiums 25 1,420,448,381 1,192,093,015
Premiums ceded 26 (1,152,327,101) (879,992,424)
Net earned premiums 27 268,121,280 312,100,591
Commission income 28 129,505,465 142,039,030
Investment income 29 187,095,982 180,559,508
Net gains/ (losses) on fair value changes 30 - -
Net realised gains/ (losses) 31 - -
Other income 32 3,477,501 4,252,110
TOTAL INCOME 588,200,228 638,951,239
EXPENSES
Gross claims paid 33 384,156,546 941,894,017
Claims ceded 34 (248,831,419) (766,721,349)
Gross change in contract liabilities 35(a) 59,356,604 (6,676,480)
Change in contract liabities ceded to reinsurers 35(b) (68,021,591) (70,104,171)
Net claims paid 126,660,140 98,392,017
Commission expenses 36 13,257,865 14,671,420
Service fees 37 2,930,941 2,813,860
Employee benefits expenses 38 117,429,062 108,600,649
Depreciation and amortization expenses 39 6,758,157 5,622,339
Impairment losses 40 1,743,508 1,262,679
Other expenses 41 69,966,284 69,340,784
Finance cost 42 - -
TOTAL EXPENSES 338,745,957 300,703,748
Net profit/(loss) for the year before share of net 249,454,271 338,247,491
profits of associates accounted for using equity
method and tax
Share of net profit of associates accounted using equity 9 - -
method
Profit before tax 249,454,271 338,247,491
Income tax expense 43 77,674,494 102,236,109
Net profit/ (loss) for the year 171,779,777 236,011,382
Earning per share 50 - -
Basic EPS 16.08 22.98
Diluted EPS 16.08 22.98
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
For and on behalf of Himalayan General Insurance Company Limited
Mahendra Krishna Shrestha Bikram Krishna Shrestha Vijit Krishna Shrestha Ajaya Ratna Sthapit Nura Kumari Sharma
Chairman Director Director Director Director

Anila Shrestha,
FCA, AFCA

Dashrath Lal Shrestha Sushil Bajracharya Dhruba Pd. Neupane

Director Chief Executive Officer Deputy General Manager Sundar & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Place: Kathmandu
Date: 2077/11/03
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STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
As At Ashadh 31,2077 (July 15, 2020)

Amountin NRs.

For the year ended

As at Ashadh 31,2077 As at Ashadh 31, 2076
(July 15, 2020) (July 16,2019)

Net profit/ (loss) for the year 171,779,777 236,011,382

Other Comprehensive Income

a. Items that are or may be Reclassified to Profit or Loss
Changes in fair value of FVOCI Debt Instruments - -
Cash flow hedge - effective portion of changes in fair value - -
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operation - -
Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted - -
for using the equity method
Income tax relating to above items reclassified to profit or loss - -

b. Items that will not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss

Changes in fair value of FVOCI equity instruments 653,828,528 2,906,181
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment/ intangible assets - -
Remeasurement of post-employment benefit obligations (19,615,359) 5,417,392

Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted - -
for using the equity method

Income tax relating to above items (190,263,950) (2,497,073)
Total other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 443,949,219 5,826,500
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 615,728,996 241,837,882

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

For and on behalf of Himalayan General Insurance Company Limited

Mahendra Krishna Shrestha Bikram Krishna Shrestha Vijit Krishna Shrestha Ajaya Ratna Sthapit Nura Kumari Sharma
Chairman Director Director Director Director
Dashrath Lal Shrestha Sushil Bajracharya Dhruba Pd. Neupane Anila Shrestha,

FCA, AFCA
Director Chief Executive Officer Deputy General Manager Sundar & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Place: Kathmandu
Date: 2077/11/03
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED ASHADH 31, 2077 (JULY 15, 2020)

Amountin NRs.

For the year ended

As at Ashadh 31,2077 As at Ashadh 31, 2076
(July 15, 2020) (July 16, 2019)

A.CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received

Gross premium received

1,397,390,805

1,459,031,800

Commission received 124,638,453 150,999,402
Claim recovery received from reinsurers 341,192,321 1,052,436,422
Foreign exchange income other than on cash and cash equivalents (224,405) (4,271,369)
Other income 2,559,916 3,326,323
Cash paid
Gross claims paid (417,245,467) (941,894,017)
Reinsurance premium paid (1,110,068,862) (1,365,586,528)
Commission paid (16,009,797) (12,580,579)
Service fees paid (14,588,588) (11,909,766)
Employee benefits expenses paid (119,377,665) (93,619,884)

Other expenses paid

(221,659,832)

(23,541,729)

Others

Income tax paid

(86,849,166)

(74,000,172)

Total cash flow from operating activities

(120,242,287)

138,389,903

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisitions of intangible assets

(4,875,000)

Proceeds from sale of intangible assets

(2,520,000)

Acquisitions of investment properties

Proceeds from sale of investment properties

Rental income received

Acquisitions of property, plant & equipment

(8,545,098)

(20,900,593)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment

1,438,141

Payment for acquisition of subsidiaries/ investment in subsidiaries

Investment in associates

Receipts from sale of investments in subsidiaries

Receipts from sale of investments in associates

Purchase of equity instruments

(9,330,442)

(61,126,943)

Proceeds from sale of equity instruments

Purchase of mutual funds

(6,000,000)

Proceeds from sale of mutual funds

2,610,000

Purchase of preference shares

Proceeds from sale of preference shares

Purchase of debentures

(17,000,000)

Proceeds from sale of debentures

Purchase of bonds

Proceeds from sale of bonds

Investments in deposits

(1,256,500,000)

(1,325,500,000)

Maturity of deposits 1,228,000,000 1,340,500,000
Proceeds from finance lease - -
Loans paid - -
Proceeds from loans - -
Interest income received 187,693,782 175,981,611
Dividend received 4,319,754 2,159,328
Other income -

Total cash flow from investing activities 120,372,996 110,031,544
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED ASHADH 31, 2077 (JULY 15, 2020)

Amount in NRs.

For the year ended

Ashadh 31, 2077
(July 15,2020)

As at Ashadh 31, 2076
(July 16,2019)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest paid - -
Payment of finance lease - -
Proceeds from issue of share capital - -
Share issuance cost paid - -
Dividend paid (36,594,000) (87,994)
Dividend distribution tax paid (3,980,400) -
Others - -
Total cash flow from financing activities (40,574,400) (87,994)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash & cash equivalents [a+b+c] (40,443,691) 248,333,453
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 325,766,780 78,888,171
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 116,385 (1,454,844)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 285,439,474 325,766,780
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand 428,699 459,879
Cheques in hand 5,783,969 -
Term deposit with banks (with initial maturity up to 3 months) 221,272,834 201,463,162
Balance with banks 57,953,972 123,843,739
Total 285,439,474 325,766,780
For and on behalf of Himalayan General Insurance Company Limited
Mahendra Krishna Shrestha Bikram Krishna Shrestha Vijit Krishna Shrestha Ajaya Ratna Sthapit Nura Kumari Sharma
Chairman Director Director Director Director

Dashrath Lal Shrestha Sushil Bajracharya
Director Chief Executive Officer

Place: Kathmandu
Date: 2077/11/03
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Dhruba Pd. Neupane

Deputy General Manager

Anila Shrestha,
FCA, AFCA

Sundar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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HIMALAYAN GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED
Annual Report 2076/77

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended on Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

1. Company overview

Himalayan General Insurance Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”) is a public limited
liability company incorporated as per the laws of Nepal. The Company obtained the license (License number
04/050) from Beema Samiti on Srawan 6, 2050 and finally got approval from Beema Samiti to carry on
business from Srawan 13, 2050 under Insurance Act 2049. The Company started its commercial operation
from Mangsir 16, 2050.

The registered office of the Company and the principal place of business is located at HGI House, Babar
Mahal, Kathmandu, Nepal.

The Company is engaged in the business of underwriting non-life insurance. There were no significant
changes in the nature of principal activities in the company during the financial year.

The Company does not have any holding company and neither have any interest in subsidiary and associate
companies.

These financial statements were approved for issue by the Company’s board of directors on Falgun 03, 2077
(February 15, 2021).

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements

2.1 Statement of compliance
These financial statements, which comprise the statement of financial position, statement of profit or
loss, statement of other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash
flows and notes thereto have been prepared in all material aspects in accordance with requirements
applicable Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) and the relevant presentation requirements
thereof as laid down by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN), and comply with
requirements of Company Act, 2063 of Nepal and applicable directives issued by Insurance Board of
Nepal. The Company adopted NFRS from Srawan 1, 2074 (July 16, 2017).

2.2 Basis of measurement
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention, except for
certain items as follows:

a. Investment in equity instruments and units of mutual fund are measured at fair value.

a. Liability for defined benefit obligations is recognised at present value of the defined benefit obligation as
determined by actuary.

a. Insurance contract liabilities are actuarial determined values, and these have been measured at higher
of such actuarial determined values under liability adequacy test and regulatory requirements as per the
circular dated Ashwin 12, 2075 (September 28, 2018) of the Insurance Board of Nepal.

Historical cost is generally fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1,0r 2, or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance
of the inputs used for fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:
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Level 1 - Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 - Inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 - Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
The Company presents its statement of financial position broadly in the order of liquidity.

2.3 Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with NFRS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate
is revised if the revision affects only that period; they are recognised in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Critical accounting estimates / judgements Disclosure note

Unexpired risk reserve (URR) Note 3.11(a)

Provision for gross outstanding claims (OCR) Note 3.11(b)

Provision for incurred but not reported claims (IBNR) Note 3.11(c)

Employee benefits Note 3.12(a), (b) and (c)
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment Note 3.1(d)

Useful lives of intangible assets Note 3.2(c)

a. Insurance contract liabilities
For insurance contracts, estimates have to be made both for the expected ultimate cost of claims
reported at the date of statement of financial position and for the expected ultimate cost of claims
incurred, but not yet reported (IBNR). It can take significant period of time before the ultimate claims
cost can be established with certainty. The main assumption underlying estimating the amounts of
outstanding claims is the past claims development experience.

a. Defined benefit obligation
The defined benefit obligation liability of the Company is based on the actuarial valuations carried out
by an independent actuary. The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about discount rates,
expected rates of return on assets, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexity
of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is
very sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

a. Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
As described in the significant accounting policies, the Company reviews the estimated useful lives of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at the end of each reporting period.

2.4 Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (Rs.), which is the functional and presentation
currency of the Company. Amounts in the financial statements are rounded off to the nearest rupee.
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2.5 Going concern
The board of directors have made assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as going concern
and are satisfied that it has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore,
the management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company'’s ability to continue as going concern and accordingly, the financial statements continue to be
prepared on the basis of going concern.

2.6 Materiality and aggregation
Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the financial statements. Items of dissimilar
nature or function are presented separately unless that are material.

2.7 Changes in Accounting Policy
Accounting policies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by the
Company in preparing and presenting financial statements. The Company changes its accounting policy
only if the change is required by a standard or interpretation; or results in the financial statements
providing reliable and more relevant information about the effects of transactions, other events or
conditions on the company'’s financial position, financial performance, or cash flows.

2.8 New standard issued but not yet effective
There have been amendments to the standards issued by International Accounting Standard Board
(IASB) and applicability of the new standards have been notified for International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS). These amendments and new standards become applicable only when these are
pronounced by ICAN.

b. IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments
IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments replaces IAS 39 - Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement
and is effective from period beginning from January 1, 2018.

IFRS 9 replaces the existing ‘incurred loss’' impairment approach with an expected credit loss approach,
resulting in earlier recognition of credit losses. IFRS 9 impairment model has three stages. Entities

are required to recognize a 12-month expected loss allowance on initial recognition (stage 1) and a
lifetime expected loss allowance when there has been a significant increase in credit risk (stage 2).
The assessment of whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred is a key aspect of the IFRS
9 methodology and involves quantitative measures, such as forward looking probabilities of default,
and qualitative factors and therefore requires considerable management judgment. Stage 3 requires
objective evidence of impairment, which is similar to the guidance on incurred losses in IAS 39.1FRS 9
requires the use of more forward looking information including reasonable and supportable forecasts
of future economic conditions. The need to consider multiple economic scenarios and how they could
impact the loss allowance is a very subjective feature of IFRS 9 impairment model.

NFRS 9 - Financial Instruments currently pronounced by ICAN only prescribes recognition and
measurement of financial instruments and does not prescribe impairment of financial instruments.
According, in these financial statements, financial instruments, viz. financial assets, financial liabilities
and equity instruments are recognised and measured as per NFRS 9. Whereas impairment on financial
assets are recognised on the basis of incurred loss as per NAS 39.

¢. IFRS 16 - Leases
On January 13,2016 IASB issued IFRS 16 to replace IAS 17 — Leases. The new standard sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases. All leases result in
the lessee obtaining the right to use an asset at the start of the lease and, lease payments are made
over time, also obtaining financing. Accordingly, IFRS 16 eliminates the classification of leases as either
operating leases or finance leases as is required by IAS 17 and instead, introduces a single lessee
accounting model. Lessees will be required to recognize: (a) assets and liabilities for all leases with a
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term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value; and (b) depreciation of lease
assets separately from interest on lease liabilities in the income statement. IFRS 16 substantially carries
forward lessor accounting requirements in IAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases
as operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those two types of leases differently. IFRS 16 is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

d. IFRS 17 — Insurance Contract
In May 2017, IASB issued IFRS 17 and will replace IFRS 4 — Insurance Contract. Under the IFRS 17 model,
insurance contract liabilities will be calculated as the present value of future insurance cash flows with
a provision for risk. The discount rate will reflect current interest rates. IFRS 17 requires an entity to
recognise profit as it delivers insurance services, rather than when it received premium and to provide
information about insurance contract profit that an entity expects to recognise in the future period.

3. Significant accounting policies
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

3.1 Property, plant and equipment
a. Recognition of property, plant and equipment
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as assets if and only if:
e |[tis probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow the Company; and
® The cost of the item can be measured reliably.

b. Initial recognition
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation, and impairment loss, if
any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of an item of
property, plant and equipment.

¢. Subsequent recognition
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to statement of profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

d. Depreciation method, estimated useful lives and residual value
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over their useful lives. The estimated useful
lives of property, plant and equipment is as follows:

Class of property, plant and equipment Useful life

Building 60 years
Leasehold property 5 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Computers 5years
Office equipment 5years
Other assets 10 years
Vehicles 10 years

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted if appropriate.
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e. Disposals and derecognition
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal
or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment and is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.

f. Impairment of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceed:s its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

g. Capital work-in-progress
These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the construction of buildings, major plant
and machinery and system development which are to be capitalized. Capital work-in-progress are
capitalised to relevant asset when it is available for use. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

3.2 Intangible assets
a. Initial recognition
An intangible asset is recognised if it is probable that future economic benefits that are attributable to
the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible asset
acquired separately are measured at cost. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of an item of intangible assets. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

b. Subsequent recognition
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied
in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in statement of profit or loss
as incurred.

¢. Amortisation
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. An item of intangible
asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on an analysis of all of the relevant
factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected generate net cash
inflow for the Company.

The useful economic life of an intangible asset is considered finite where the right to such asset is
limited to a specified period of time by contract or by the likelihood of technological obsolescence.
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised using the straight-line method to write down the cost
over its estimated useful economic lives and is recognised in statement of profit or loss.

Class of intangible assets Useful life

Capitalised software 5 years

The amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted if appropriate.
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d. Derecognition
Intangible assets are derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset, is recognised in statement of profit
or loss in the year the asset is derecognised.

e. Impairment
The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that intangible
assets may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to determine the extent of impairment, if any. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss to the extent, asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on
the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to the assets.

3.3 Investment Properties
Property that is held for rental income or for capital appreciation or both, is classified as investment
property. Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including related transaction cost. It is
subsequently carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to
the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

Land is carried at historical cost however, buildings are depreciated over their estimated useful lives as
mentioned above.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of, or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected
from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal.

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer
from investment property to PPE, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value at the
date of change in use. If PPE becomes an investment property, the Company accounts for such property
in accordance with the policy stated under PPE up to the date of change in use.

3.4 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, balances with banks and financial institutions in
current and short-term deposits that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

3.5 Financial instruments, financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the relevant instrument and are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value on initial recognition of financial assets or financial liabilities.

a. Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
e those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss), and
e those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and
the contractual terms of the cash flows.
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For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recorded in statement of profit or loss or
other comprehensive income.

The Company reclassifies financial assets when and only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

b. Financial assets
Financial assets include loans, advances, insurance receivables and cash and cash equivalents. Such
assets are initially recognised at transaction price when the Company becomes party to contractual
obligations. The transaction price includes transaction costs unless the asset is being measured at fair
value through statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

i.

fi.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of both (a) the entity’s
business model for managing the financial assets and (b) the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial asset.

Financial assets are classified as those:
e Measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost, if it is held solely for collection of cash flows arising
from payments of principal and interest. Interest income in these financial assets is measured using
the effective interest rate method.

Fixed deposits with banks and financial institutions, advances, insurance receivables and cash and
cash equivalents are classified for measurement at amortised cost.

e Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

A financial asset is measured at FVOC], if it is held with an objective to collect contractual cash flows
and selling such financial asset and the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal

and interest on the principal outstanding. It is subsequently measured at fair value with fair value
movements recognised in the other comprehensive income (OCl), except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other
gains or losses. Interest income from these financial assets is included in investment income using
the effective interest method.

However, in respect of particular investments in equity instruments that would otherwise be
measured at fair value through profit or loss, an irrevocable election at initial recognition may be
made to present subsequent changes in fair value through other comprehensive income.

e Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through
profit or loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included in investment income.

Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised when the right to receive cash flows from the assets has expired,
or has been transferred, and the Company has transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership. Financial assets are also derecognised upon write off. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of financial asset is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and its carrying amount and is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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iii. Impairment of financial assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset (or a group of financial
assets) held at amortised cost and financial assets that are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are impaired based on evidence or information that is available without
undue cost or effort. Loss allowances is recognised for all financial assets which are considered as
doubtful of recovery. Losses arising from impairment are recognised in statement of profit or loss.

¢. Financial liabilities
Insurance payables, sundry creditors and other financial liabilities are initially recognised at the value
of the respective contractual obligations.

i. Subsequent measurement
After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any
discount or premium on redemption / settlement is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
as finance cost over the life of the liability using the effective interest method and adjusted to the
liability figure disclosed in the statement of financial position.

ii. Derecognition
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability is extinguished, that is, when the contractual
obligation is discharged, cancelled or expired.

d. Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement
of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

3.6 Reinsurance assets
The Company cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business to recognise reinsurers through
formal reinsurance arrangements. Reinsurance assets include balance due from reinsurer for unexpired
premium reserve and for outstanding claim reserve. Amount recoverable from reinsurers are estimated
in a manner consistent with the ratio of unexpired premium reserve to gross premiums that have been
ceded and with the ratio of outstanding claim reserve recoverable from reinsurers in accordance with the
related reinsurance contract.

Reinsurance assets is measured in gross in the statement of financial position unless a right to offset
exits. Where the right to offset exits, these are measured at net basis.

Reinsurance assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date, or more frequently, when an
indication of impairment arises during the reporting period. Impairment occurs, when there is objective
evidence as a result of an event that occurred after initial recognition of reinsurance asset that the
Company may not receive all outstanding amounts due under the terms of the contract and the event
has a reliably measurable impact on the amount that the Company will receive from the reinsurers.

The impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Reinsurance assets are derecognised when the contractual rights are extinguished or expire or when the
contract is transferred to another party.

3.7 Current tax assets and current tax liabilities
Current tax assets of the company include the amount of advance income tax paid to the Inland
Revenue Department and tax deducted at source. Similarly, current tax liabilities include the tax
provision made for the year.

41



HIMALAYAN GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED
Annual Report 2076/77

Current tax assets and liabilities consist of amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to Inland
Revenue Department in respect of the current year, using the tax rates and tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted on the reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior years.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are shown in net in statement of financial position of the
company as there exist condition to set off both of the assets and liabilities.

3.8 Other assets
Deferred fees and commission expenses

Fees and commission expenses incurred during the financial year arising from writing or renewing
of insurance contracts are deferred and amortised over the period in which the related revenues are
earned. All other costs are recognised as expenses when incurred.

3.9 Share capital
Financial instruments issued by the Company are classified as equity only to the extent that they do not
meet the definition of a financial liability.

3.10 Reserve and funds
a. Share premium
It represents amount collected in excess of the face value of shares on auction of unsubscribed right
shares. This amount may be utilised for issuing fully paid bonus shares to the ordinary shareholders.

b. Capital reserve
It represents funds used for contingencies or to offset capital losses. It is derived from the
accumulated capital surplus of a company, created out of capital profit.

¢. Insurance fund
Represents appropriation of 50% of profit for the year as per Insurance Act, 2049 to categories based
on the weight of their contribution to revenue. The fund maintained for one category cannot be not
be utilized to bear the liabilities relating to other category of Insurance Business. During the year, the
amount appropriated to the fund is based on the profit for the year as per the financial statement
prepared under regulator’s directive.

d. Catastrophe reserves
Represents appropriation of 10% of profit for the year remaining after appropriation to insurance fund,
segregated for significant insurance claims that might have adverse impact on financial stability. This
reserve is not available for distribution to the ordinary shareholders.

e. Insurance reserves
Represents all the reserves created before financial year 2064-65.

f. Fairvalue reserves
Represents the cumulative gains (net of losses) arising on the revaluation of equity Instruments and
units of mutual fund measured at FVOCI.

g. Regulatory reserves
Represents excess amount of retained earnings as on Srawan 1, 2073 and profit reported under
financial statement prepared under NFRS compared to retained earnings as on Srawan 1, 2073 and
profit reported together with accumulated profit under GAAP.

h. Actuarial reserves
Represents the cumulative gains / (losses) arising on actuary valuation of gratuity, a defined benefit
plan resulting from experience adjustment (the effects of differences between the previous actuarial
assumptions and what has occurred; and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions.)
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i. Revaluation reserves
Represents unrealised gain on revaluation adjustment to carrying amount of assets and cannot be
used for distribution.

j. Cash flow hedge reserve
Represents investment position taken by the company to offset the potential impact of a particular
risk on the cash flows of an asset, liability or another sort of exposure.

k. Other Reserves
Represent amount appropriated from retained earnings for an amount equal to deferred tax assets
recognised as per the regulator’s directive.

3.11 Insurance contract liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities include outstanding claim reserve (OCR) including liability recognised for
incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims and provision for unearned risk premiums (UPR). Insurance
contract liabilities are derecognised when the obligation to pay a claim expires, is discharged or is
cancelled.

a. Unearned risk reserve (URR)
Unearned risk reserve includes a provision for unearned premium and any additional provision for
premium deficiency. Unearned risk premiums represent premiums received for risks that have not yet
expired and is generally released over the term of the insurance contract and is recognised as earned
premiums.

As required by NFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts, the Company performed liability adequacy test (LAT)
with respect of URR on general insurance contracts with the assistance of an external actuary. Liability
for URR is recognised at higher of the liability assessed by actuary in LAT or liability required under
regulatory requirements at 50% of net premium received.

b. Outstanding claim reserve (OCR)
Outstanding claim reserve is based on the estimated ultimate cost of all claim incurred but not
settled at the reporting date, whether reported or not, together with related claim handling cost
and reduction for the expected value of salvage and other recoveries. Delays are experienced in
notification and settlement of certain types of claims, therefore, the ultimate actual cost of the claims
cannot be ascertained with certainty as at the date of statement of financial position.

As required by NFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts, the Company performed liability adequacy test (LAT)
with respect of OCR on general insurance contracts with the assistance of an external actuary. Liability
for OCR is recognised at higher of the liability assessed by actuary in LAT or liability required under
regulatory requirements.

¢. Incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims
Incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims are actuarially computed as required by NFRS 4 — Insurance
Contracts. Liability of IBNR is recognised at higher of the liability assessed by actuary in LAT or liability
required under regulatory requirements at 15% of net outstanding claims.

d. Liability Adequacy
At each reporting date, the Company reviews its unexpired risk and a liability adequacy test is
performed to determine whether there is any overall excess of expected claims and deferred
acquisition costs over unearned premiums. The calculation uses current estimates of future contractual
cash flows after taking account of the investment return expected to arise on assets relating to the
relevant non-life insurance technical provisions. If these estimates show that the carrying amount of
the unearned premiums is inadequate, the deficiency is recognized in the statement of profit or loss
by setting up a provision for liability.
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3.12 Employee benefits
a. Short-term obligations

Expenses in respect of short-term benefits are recognised on the basis of amount paid or payable
during which services are rendered by the employees. Liabilities for salary and allowances that are
expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the financial year in which the
employees render the related services are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end
of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are
settled.

b. Post-employment obligations
i. Defined contribution plan
These are plans in which the Company pays pre-defined amounts to publicly administered funds
as per local regulations and does not have any legal or informal obligation to pay additional sums.
These comprise of contributions to the social security fund with the government on account of
provident fund. The Company’s payments to the defined contribution plans are recognised as
employee benefit expenses when they are due.

ii. Defined benefit plan
The Company’s defined benefit plans comprise of gratuity. The liability or asset recognised in the
statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined
benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

Service costs and net interest expense or income is reflected in the statement of profit or loss.
Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive
income. They are included in OCl reserve as actuarial reserve in the statement of changes in
equity and in the statement of financial position. Gratuity is funded and deposited with Citizens
Investment Trust, towards meeting the gratuity obligation.

¢. Long-term employee benefits
The liabilities for earned leaves are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employees render the related service. Leave Encashment has been
computed using actuarial assumptions and these are measured at the present value of expected
future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the year
using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end
of the year that have terms approximating to the terms of assumptions. This benefit is unfunded.

d. Termination benefits
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Company before the normal
retirement date, or when an employee accepts voluntary retirement in exchange of these benefits. The
Company recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates:
e when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and
e when the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of NAS 37 and involves
the payment of termination benefits.

The termination benefits are measured based on the number of employees expected to accept the
offer in case of voluntary retirement scheme.

3.13 Revenue recognition
a. Gross premiums
Gross premiums comprise the total premium received or receivable for the whole period of cover
provided by insurance contract entered into during the financial year. Gross premium is generally
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recognised upon inception of the insurance contract policy. Upon inception of the contract, premiums
are recorded as and are earned primarily on a pro-rate basis over the term of the coverage of related
insurance contract.

Unexpired risk reserve are those proportions of premiums written in a financial year that relate to
periods of risks after the reporting date. Unexpired premiums are calculated on 365 days basis for all
insurance contracts having an insurance coverage period of one year. However, in the case of marine
cargo policies, having an insurance coverage period of less than one year, unearned premiums are
calculated on 365 days basis of the insurance contract and where the insurance coverage is for a
period of more than one year or in the absence of data required, unearned premiums are calculated at
50% of the gross premiums.

The proportion attributable to subsequent periods is deferred as provision for unexpired risk reserve
which is included under liabilities.

b. Premiums ceded to reinsurers
Gross reinsurance premiums on insurance contracts are recognised as an expense on the earlier of the
date when the premiums are payable or when the policy becomes effective. Reinsurance premiums
are based on the rates agreed with reinsurers.

Unearned reinsurance premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to
periods of risk after the reporting date. Unearned reinsurance premiums are deferred over the term
of the underlying direct insurance policies for risks- attaching contracts and over the term of the
reinsurance contract for losses occurring contracts.

Reinsurance premiums and claims on the face of the statement of profit or loss have been presented
as negative items within premiums and net claims, respectively, because this is consistent with how
the business is managed.

¢. Fees and commission income
Fees and commission income earned during the financial year arising on premium ceded to reinsurers
are recognised when the related service is performed in accordance with the insurance contract. The
portion of fees and commission income for which the insurance contact is not expired is deferred and
amortised over the period in with the related revenues are earned.

d. Investment income
i. Interestincome
Interest income is recognised as it accrues, using the effective interest method.

ii. Dividend income
Dividend income from investments in equity instruments and from investment in units of mutual
funds is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established.

e. Net realized gains and losses
Net realised gains and losses recorded in the statement of profit or loss include gains and losses
on financial assets and properties. Gains and losses on the sale of investments are calculated as
the difference between net sales proceeds and the original or amortised cost and are recorded on
occurrence of the sale transaction.

3.14 Benefits and claims

a. Gross benefits and claims
Claims include all claims occurring during the financial year, whether reported or not together with
claims handling costs that are directly related to the processing and settlement of claims, a reduction
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for the value of salvage and other recoveries, and any adjustments to claims outstanding from
previous years. Claims outstanding are assessed by review of individual claim files and estimating
changes in the ultimate cost of settling claims.

The provision in respect of claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) is actuarially determined based
on the past experience and trends. The provisions for claims are fairly stated on the basis of the
information currently available, the ultimate liability will vary as a result of subsequent information
and events which may result in adjustments to the amount reported. Such amounts are recorded and
reflected in such subsequent periods.

b. Claims recovered from reinsurers
Claims recovered from reinsurers are recognised when the related gross insurance claim is recognised
according to the terms of the relevant insurance contract.

3.15 Product classification
Insurance contracts are those contracts when the Company has accepted significant insurance risk from
the policyholders by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if a specified uncertain future event
(the insured event) adversely affects the policyholders. As a general guideline, the Company determines
whether it has significant insurance risk by comparing benefits paid with benefits payable if the insured
event did not occur. Insurance contracts can also transfer financial risk. The Company has following
portfolios under which it operates its business:”

a. Fire portfolio
Fire insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying out contracts of insurance,
otherwise than incidental to some other class of insurance business, against loss or damage to
property due to fire, explosion, storm and other occurrences customarily included among the risks
insured against in the fire insurance business.

b. Motor portfolio
Motor insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying out contracts of insurance
against loss of, or damage to, or arising out of or in connection with the use of motor vehicles,
inclusive of third-party risks but exclusive of transit risks.

¢. Marine portfolio
Marine insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying out contracts of insurance
against loss of consignment of goods during transit.

d. Engineering portfolio
Engineering insurance business means the insurance that provides economic safeguard to the risks
faced by the ongoing construction project, installation project, and machines and equipment in
project operation.

e. Micro portfolio
Micro Insurance protects against loss of or damage to crops or livestock. It has great potential to
provide value to low-income farmers and their communities, both by protecting farmers when shocks
occur and by encouraging greater investment in crops.

f. Aviation portfolio
Aviation Insurance provides coverage for hull losses as well as liability for passenger injuries,
environmental and third-party damage caused by aircraft accidents.

g. Cattle and crop portfolio
Cattle and Crop Insurance provides insurance against loss of or damage to cattle and crops.
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h. Miscellaneous portfolio
All the insurance business which does not fall in above categories fall under miscellaneous insurance
business. Group personal accidents, medical insurances, professional indemnity insurance etc. fall
under this category of business.

3.16 Borrowing cost
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

3.17 Cash flow statement
Cash Flows are reported using the direct method, whereby major classes of cash receipts and cash
payments are disclosed as cash flows.

3.18 Leases
Leases are classified as finance lease whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Company as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.

3.19 Income tax
a. Current tax
Current tax in the statement of profit or loss is provided as the amount of tax payable in respect of
taxable income for the period using tax rates and tax laws applicable during the period, together with
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

b. Deferred tax
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only
if it is probable that the future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences
and losses.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the statement of profit or loss is recognized
outside statement of profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
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enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred income tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

3.20 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
a. Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation
and the amount can be reliably estimated. The carrying amounts of provisions are reviewed at each
date of statement of financial position and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.

b. Contingent Liabilities
Contingent liabilities are recognized only when there is a possible obligation arising from past events
due to occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company or where any present obligation cannot be measured in terms of future
outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made. Obligations are
assessed on an ongoing basis and only those having a largely probable outflow of resources are
provided for.

¢. Contingent Assets
Contingent assets where it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company are not
recognized but are disclosed in the financial statements.

3.21 Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at

the date of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at
year end exchange rates are recognised in statement of profit or loss.

3.22 Dividend distribution
Dividends paid are recognised in the period in which the interim dividends are approved by the board of
directors, or in respect of the final dividend when approved by shareholders.

3.23 Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the company by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year.

For diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is adjusted to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

3.24 Operating Segment

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker (CODM). The CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the management team of the Company
comprising of the chief executive officer and various department heads.
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The Company has identified the following line of insurance business as separate segment

Fire

Marine

Motor
Engineering
Aviation
Miscellaneous
Agriculture and
Micro

Segments are organised based on business which have similar economic characteristics as well as which
exhibit similarities in nature of products and services offered, the type and class of customer and distribution
methods.

Segments includes total profit distribution of the Company to all its line of businesses. The premium income,
reinsurance premium expenses, gross claims and claims recovered from reinsurers, outstanding claims, other
direct expenses and income, fees and commission income, other operating and administrative expenses are

allocated to each line of business as per the existing GAAP.

“Unallocated corporate expenses”include revenue and expenses that relate to initiatives / costs attributable
to the enterprise as a whole and are not attributable to segments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED ASHADH 31, 2077 (JULY 15, 2020)

4. INTANGIBLE ASSETS Amount in NRs.
Particulars Software Licenses Others Total
Gross carrying amount
As at Ashadh 31, 2076 1,946,000 - - 1,946,000
Additions 4,875,000 - - 4,875,000
Disposals - - -
Revaluation - - -
Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2077 6,821,000 6,821,000
/Accumulated amortization and impairment
As at Ashadh 31, 2076 209,523 - - 209,523
Additions 685,342 - - 685,342
Disposals - - -

Impairment losses - -
Impairment reversal - -
Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2077 894,865 - - 894,865

Net carrying amount
As at Ashadh 31, 2076 1,736,477 = = 1,736,477
As at Ashadh 31, 2077 5,926,135 = = 5,926,135
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED ASHADH 31, 2077 (JULY 15, 2020)

6. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES Amount in NRs.

Particulars Building
Gross carrying amount
As at Ashadh 31, 2076 - - -
Additions - - -
Disposals - -
Transfer/ adjustments - -
Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2077 -
Depreciation and impairment
As at Ashadh 31, 2076 - - -
Depreciation charge - -
Disposals - -
Impairment losses - -
Impairment reversal - -
Transfer/ adjustments -
Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2077 - - -

Capital work-in-progress
As at Ashadh 31, 2076 - - -
Additions - - -

Capitalization - -

Disposals - -

Impairment losses - -

Impairment reversal - -
As at Ashadh 31, 2077 - - -

Net Carrying Amount
As at Ashadh 31, 2076 - -
As at Ashadh 31, 2077 - o -

(i) Amounts recognised in statement of profit or loss for investment properties

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Rental income
Direct operating expenses from property that generated rental income - -
Direct operating expenses from property that didn't generated rental income - -
Profit from investment properties before depreciation -
Depreciation charge -
Profit from investment properties - -

(i) Fair value of investment properties:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Land - -
Building -
Total - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED ASHADH 31, 2077 (JULY 15, 2020)

7. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/ (LIABILITIES) Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Intangible assets 189,319 306,757
Property, plant and equipment (1,362,046) (1,191,237)
Fair value gains/ (losses) (197,156,253) (1,007,695)
Provision for leave encashment 2,274,704 1,602,033
Provision for gratuity 20,560,212 13,323,946
Provision for unrealised premium 523,052 -

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment -
Impairment loss on financial assets -
Impairment loss on other assets -

Rent equalization 236,256 345,761
Income tax losses - -
Other
IBNR 29,936,628 (33,621,640)
Reinsurance asset on IBNR (24,154,270) 39,139,343
Premium deficiency reserve 730,638 -
Provision for premium deficiency reserve 12,440
Margin for adverse deviation 4,476,283 -
Reinsurance asset on margin for adverse deviation (4,061,948)
Deferred fee and commission expenses (2,226,571) (1,666,270)
Deferred commission income 15,418,829 16,878,932
Total (154,602,727) 34,109,930

Movements in deferred tax assets/ (liabilities)

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
As at Ashadh 31, 2076
Charged/(credited) to statement of profit or loss (4,219,169) 17,517,789
Charged/(credited) to other comprehensive income 190,263,950 2,497,073
As at Ashadh 31, 2077 186,044,781 20,014,862
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED ASHADH 31, 2077 (JULY 15, 2020)

8. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars

Amountin NRs.

Current Year Previous Year

Investment in quoted subsidiaries

Investment in unquoted subsidiaries

Less: impairment losses

Total

Investment in quoted subsidiaries

Particulars

Cost

Current Year

Fair Value

Previous Year

Amount in NRs.

Fair Value

Total

Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries

Cost

Current Year

Fair Value

Previous Year

Amount in NRs.

Fair Value

Total

Information relating to subsidiaries: The Company does not have any subsidiary companies.

9. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

Particulars
Investment in quoted associates

Amount in NRs.

Previous Year

Investment in unquoted associates

Less: Impairment Losses

Total

Investment in quoted associates

Particulars

Current Year

Fair value

(or) Equity
method

Previous Year

Fair value

Amount in NRs.

(or) Equity
method

Add: share of profit or loss for earlier years

Add: share of profit or loss for current year

Total

Investment in unquoted associates

Particulars

Current Year

Fair value

(or) Equity

method

Previous Year

Fair value

Amount in NRs.

(or) Equity
method

Add: share of profit or loss for earlier years

Add: share of profit or loss for current year

Total

Information relating to associates: The Company does not have any associates
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YEAR ENDED ASHADH 31, 2077 (JULY 15, 2020)

10. INVESTMENTS Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Investments measured at amortised cost
i) Investment in preference shares of bank and financial institutions - -
i) Investment in debentures 17,000,000 -

i) Investment in bonds (Nepal Government/NRB/Guaranteed by
Nepal Government)

iv) Fixed Deposit of “A” Class Financial Institutions

1,686,000,000

1,667,000,000

v) Fixed Deposit of Infrastructure Banks

vi) Fixed Deposits in “B” Class Financial Institutions

74,000,000

68,500,000

vii) Fixed Deposits in “C” Class Financial Institutions

11,500,000

7,500,000

viii) Others

Less: Impairment Losses

Investments measured at FVTOCI

i) Investment in equity instruments (quoted)

880,276,128

55,694,639

ii) Investment in equity instruments (unquoted)

1,000,000

162,016,800

iii) Investment in mutual funds

20,252,025

17,267,744

iv) Investment in debentures

v) Others

Investments measured at FVTPL

i) Investment in equity instruments

ii) Investment in mutual funds

iii) Others

Total

2,690,028,153

1,977,979,183

a. Details of Impairment Losses

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Investment in preference shares of bank and financial institutions

Investment in debentures

Investment in bonds (Nepal Government/NRB/Guaranteed by Nepal
Government)

Fixed Deposit with “A” Class Financial Institutions

Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Bank

Fixed Deposits with “B” Class Financial Institutions

Fixed Deposits with “C" Class Financial Institutions

Others

Total

b. Investments having expected maturities less than 12 months:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Investment in equity instruments (quoted)

Investment in equity instruments (unquoted)

Investment in mutual funds

Investment in preference shares of bank and financial institutions

Investment in debentures

Investment in bonds

Fixed Deposit with “A” Class Financial Institutions

1,172,000,000

1,177,000,000

Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Bank

Fixed Deposits with “B” Class Financial Institutions 68,500,000 68,500,000
Fixed Deposits with “C” Class Financial Institutions 7,500,000 7,500,000
Others - -
Total 1,248,000,000 1,253,000,000

¢. The Company has earmarked investments amounting to Rs. 937,911,700 (2075-76: Rs. 635,000,000) to Insurance Board.

d. The rate of interest on fixed deposits ranges from 7% to13% (2075-76: 9% to 12%) for deposits with commercial banks,

(2075-76: 10.50% to 13%) for deposits with development banks and 10.75% to 11% (2075-76: 10.75% to 11%; 2074-75: 12.50%)

for deposits with finance companies.
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11. LOANS

Particulars
Loan to associates

Current Year

Amountin NRs.
Previous Year

Loan to employees

Loan to agents

Others

Less: Impairment losses

Total

a. Expected recovery period within 12 months:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Loan to associates

Loan to employees

Loan to agents

Others

Total

12. REINSURANCE ASSETS

Particulars
Receivable from reinsurers

Current Year

Amount in NRs.
Previous Year

Receivable from other insurance companies

590,123,145

606,340,050

Others

(41,466)

Less: Impairment losses

270,796,563

80,225,087

Total

1,268,548,853

1,404,597,098

Margin for adverse deviation

13,539,827

Less: Impairment losses

Total

2,142,966,922

2,091,162,235

13. INSURANCE RECEIVABLES

Particulars
Receivable from reinsurers

Current Year
252,274,354

Amount in NRs.

Previous Year
297,099,862

Receivable from other insurance companies

7,556,270

55,091,664

Others

Less: Impairment losses

(163,180,010)

(163,180,010)

Total 96,650,614 189,011,516
a. Expected recovery period within 12 months:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Receivable from reinsurers 89,094,344 133,919,852
Receivable from other insurance companies 7,556,270 55,091,664
Others - -
Total 96,650,614 189,011,516
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14. OTHER ASSETS Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Capital advances - -
Prepaid expenses - -
Claim advance 33,501,421 412,500
Advance to suppliers - -
Staff advances - -
VAT receivable - -
Deferred expenses - -
Deferred agent commission expenses 7,421,904 5,554,233
Finance lease receivable - -
Stamp stock 72,530 71,130
Printing and stationery stock - -
Lease equalization receivable - -
Others - -
Less: Impairment losses - -
Total 40,995,855 6,037,863
a. Expected to be recovered/ settled within 12 months:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Capital advances - -
Prepaid expenses - -
Claim advance 33,501,421 412,500
Advance to suppliers - -
Staff advances - -
VAT receivable - -
Deferred expenses - -
Deferred agent commission expenses 7,421,904 5,554,233
Finance lease receivable - -
Stamp stock 72,530 71,130
Printing and stationery stock - -
Lease equalisation receivable - -
Others - -
Total 40,995,855 6,037,863
15. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Security deposits - -
Accrued interest 5,172,886 10,090,440
Other receivables - -
Sundry debtors 183,737,959 10,088,647
Other deposits 260,000 260,000
Other - -
Advance for expenses - 468,446
Less: Impairment losses (unrealized cheque) (1,743,508) (917,585)
Total 187,427,337 19,989,948
a. Expected maturities within 12 months:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Security deposits - -
Accrued interest 5,172,886 10,090,440
Other receivables - -
Sundry debtors 737,248 10,088,647
Other deposits 260,000 260,000
Other - -
Total 29,534,091 19,521,502
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16. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Amount in NRs.

Ordinary shares

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Cash in hand 428,699 459,879
Cheques in hand 5,783,969 -
Bank balances
i) Balance with “A” Class financial institutions 53,192,217 122,136,928
i) Balance with “B” Class financial institutions 4,750,040 1,616,960
i) Balance with “C” Class financial institutions 11,715 89,851
Less: Impairment losses - -
Deposit with initial maturity up to 3 months 221,272,834 201,463,162
Others - -
Less: Impairment losses - -
Total 285,439,474 325,766,780
17(A). SHARE CAPITAL Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year

As at Ashadh 31, 2076

1,027,200,000

1,027,200,000

Additions during the year

i) Bonus share issued

41,088,000

i) Share issued

As at Ashadh 31, 2077

1,068,288,000

1,027,200,000

Convertible preference shares (equity component only)

As at Ashadh 31, 2076

Additions during the year

As at Ashadh 31, 2077

Irredeemable Preference Shares (equity component only)

As at Ashadh 31, 2076

Additions during the year

As at Ashadh 31, 2077

Total

1,068,288,000

1,027,200,000

i. Ordinary Shares

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Authorised Capital:

20,000,000 nos. of ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each

2,000,000,000

2,000,000,000

Issued Capital:

10,682,880 nos. of ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each

1,068,288,000

1,027,200,000

(2075-76: 10,272,000 nos. of ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each)

Subscribed and Paid Up Capital:

10,682,880 nos. of ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each

1,068,288,000

1,027,200,000

(2075-76: 10,272,000 nos. of ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each)

Total 1,068,288,000 1,027,200,000
ii. Preference Share Capital
Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Authorised capital

..... nos. of convertible preference shares of Rs. ... each

..... Nos. irredeemable preference shares of Rs. .... each

Issued Capital

..... Nos. of convertible preference shares of Rs...... each

..... Nos. irredeemable preference shares of Rs. ... each

Subscribed and Paid Up Capital

..... nos. of convertible preference shares of Rs. ... each

..... Nos. irredeemable preference shares of Rs. .... each

Total
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SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE OF SHARE CAPITAL Amount in NRs.
Particulars Number of Shares Percentage
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Government of Nepal - - 0.00% 0.00%
Nepalese organized institutions - - 0.00% 0.00%
Nepalese citizen 5,448,269 5,238,720 51.00% 51.00%
Foreigner - - 0.00% 0.00%
Others - - 0.00% 0.00%
Total (A) 5,448,269 5,238,720 51.00% 51.00%
Other than Promotors
General public 5,234,611 5,033,280 49.00% 49.00%
Others - - 0.00% 0.00%
Total (B) 5,234,611 5,033,280 49.00% 49.00%
Total (A+B) 10,682,880 10,272,000 100.00% 100.00%

DETAILS OF SHARES HELD BY SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING MORE THAN 1% OF

THE AGGREGATE SHARES IN THE COMPANY: Amount in NRs.
Particulars Number of Shares Percentage
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Shree Raj Krishna Shrestha 1,069,824 1,028,677 10.01% 10.01%
Shree Shubarna Krishna Shrestha 1,082,112 1,040,492 10.13% 10.13%
Shree Bikram Krishna Shrestha 1,267,869 1,219,104 11.87% 11.87%
Shree Mahendra Krishna Shrestha 1,474,029 1,417,336 13.80% 13.80%
Shree Binod Krishna Shrestha 1,083,741 1,042,059 10.14% 10.14%
17(B). SHARE APPLICATION MONEY PENDING ALLOTMENT Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Share application money pending allotment - -
Total - -
17(C). SHARE PREMIUM Amount in NRs.
As at Ashadh 31,2076 36,292,137 36,292,137
Increase due to issue of shares at premium - -
Decrease due to issue of bonus shares (36,292,137) -
Transaction costs on issue of share - -
Others - -
As at Ashadh 31, 2077 - 36,292,137
17(D). INSURANCE FUND Amountin NRs.
As at Ashadh 31, 2076 476,337,405 373,824,943
Additions 85,596,967 102,512,462
Utilizations - -
As at Ashadh 31, 2077 561,934,372 476,337,405
17(E). CATASTROPHE RESERVES Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
As at Ashadh 31, 2076 42,723,770 32,854,392
Additions 8,433,516 9,869,378
Utilizations - -
As at Ashadh 31, 2077 51,157,286 42,723,770
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17(F). RETAINED EARNINGS

Amount in NRs.

Current Year Previous Year

As at Ashadh 31, 2076

46,946,684

(59,395,502)

Net profit or loss

171,779,777

236,011,382

Items of OCl recognised directly in retained earnings

Remeasurement of post-employment benefit obligations

Transfer (to) / from reserves

Capital reserves

Insurance fund

(85,596,967

(102,512,461)

Catastrophe reserves

(9,869,378)

Regulatory reserves

(1,847,647

(34,805,146)

Fair value reserves

)
(8,433,516)
)

Actuarial reserves

Revaluation reserves

Deferred tax reserves

(1,551,293)

17,517,789

Compulsory reserve fund

Depreciation on revaluation of property, plant and equipment

On disposal of revalued property, plant and equipment

On disposal of equity instruments measured at FVTOCI

Transaction costs on issue of share

Issue of bonus shares

(4,795,863

Dividend paid

(38,520,000

Dividend distribution tax

Others

As at Ashadh 31, 2077

77,981,175

46,946,684

17(G). OTHER EQUITY

Amount in NRs.

Current Year Previous Year

Capital reserves

Insurance reserves 30,000,000 30,000,000
Regulatory reserves 36,652,793 34,805,146
Fair value reserves 460,031,259 2,351,289
Actuarial reserves (1,567,409) 12,163,342
Revaluation reserves -

Cash flow hedge reserves - -
Other reserves 41,881,779 40,330,486
Total 566,998,422 119,650,263
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18. PROVISIONS Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Provisions for employee benefits - -
i) Provision for leave 7,582,348 5,340,110
ii) Defined benefits plan (gratuity) 14,107,385 (5,965,031)
iii) Termination benefits - -
iv) Other employee benefit obligation - -
Provision for tax related legal cases - -
Provision for non-tax legal cases - -
Others - -
Total 21,689,733 (624,921)

a. Additional disclosure under of provisions

L. . Additions durin Utilised durin Reversed durin: Unwinding of .
Description Opening balance the Year 9 the Year 9 the Year 9 discoungt Closing balance
Provision for tax R . } ) ) B
related legal cases
Provision for non- B ) ) ) . B
tax legal cases

b. Provision with expected payouts within 12 months:
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Provisions for employee benefits
i) Provision for leave 1,175,329 812,806
ii) Defined benefits plan (gratuity) 14,107,385 -
iii) Termination benefits - -
iv) Other employee benefit obligation - -
Provision for tax related legal cases - -
Provision for non-tax legal cases - -
Others - -
Total 15,282,714 812,806
19. GROSS INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Unearned premiums 727,406,297 750,463,872
Premium deficiency 2,435,458 -
IBNR and IBNER 302,489,606 112,784,455
Outstanding claims 1,351,338,981 1,499,043,933
Margin for adverse deviation 14,920,944 -
Total 2,398,591,286 2,362,292,260
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20. INSURANCE PAYABLES

Amount in NRs.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Payable to reinsurers 466,775,854 407,232,906
Payable to other insurance companies 10,445,278 54,989,860
Others - -
Total 477,221,132 462,222,766
Payable within 12 months:
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Payable to reinsurers 466,775,854 407,232,906
Payable to other insurance companies 10,445,278 54,989,860
Others _ _
Total 477,221,132 462,222,766
21. CURRENT TAX (ASSETS)/ LIABILITIES (NET) Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Income tax liabilities 78,950,512 83,633,469
Income tax assets (95,517,694) (92,577,272)
Total (16,567,182) (8,943,803)
22.LOANS AND BORROWINGS Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Bond - _
Debenture - -
Term loan - bank and financial institution - -
Bank overdraft - -
Others - _
Total - -
Payable within 12 months:
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Bond - -
Debenture _ _

Term loan - bank and financial institution

Bank overdraft

Others

Total
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23. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
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Amountin NRs.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Redeemable preference shares - -
Irredemable cumulative preference shares - -
Payable to agents 1,380,665 2,264,926
Refundable share application money - -
Payable to insured - -
Lease liability - -
Sundry creditors 13,946,142 10,208,853
Retention and deposits 287,994 289,704
Short-term employee benefits payable
i) Salary payable - -
ii) Bonus payable 27,423,864 32,071,762
iii) Other employee benefit payable - -
Audit fee payable - -
Others - -
Total 43,038,665 44,835,245
Payable within 12 months:
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Redeemable preference shares - -
Irredemable cumulative preference shares - -
Payable to agent 1,380,665 2,264,926
Refundable share application money - -
Payable to insured - -
Lease liability - -
Sundry creditors 13,326,338 10,113,615
Retention and deposits - -
Short-term employee benefits payable - -
i) Salary payable - -
ii) Bonus payable 27,423,864 32,071,762
iii) Other employee benefit payable - -
Audit fee payable - -
Others - -
Total 42,130,867 44,450,303
24. OTHER LIABILITIES Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
TDS payable 9,069,805 5,968,053
VAT payable 24,661,666 22,339,025
Dividend payable 26,158 26,158
Deposit premium - -
Insurance service fee payable 13,975,639 14,590,319
Lease equilisation payable 787,519 1,152,537
Deferred income 51,396,095 56,263,107
Others - -
Total 99,916,882 100,339,199
Payable within 12 months:
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
TDS payable 9,069,805 5,968,053
VAT payable 24,661,666 22,339,025
Dividend payable 26,158 26,158
Deposit premium - -
Insurance service fee payable 13,975,639 14,590,319
Lease equilisation payable 787,519 1,152,537
Deferred income 51,396,095 56,263,107
Others - -
Total 99,916,882 100,339,199
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25. GROSS EARNED PREMIUMS

Amount in NRs.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Direct premiums 1,365,581,442 1,456,863,166
Premiums on reinsurance accepted 31,809,363 2,168,634
Gross change in unearned premiums 23,057,576 (266,938,785)
Total 1,420,448,381 1,192,093,015

Portfolio-wise details of gross earned premiums

Direct premiums

Facultative inward

Gross change in unearned

Gross earned premiums

. premiums premiums
Particulars C T
CurrentYear Previous Year ur\r{:ra\r rev:{: l;: CurrentYear Previous Year CurrentYear Previous Year
Fire 130,258,811 120,957,632 - - (4,650,590) (8,649,704) 125,608,222 112,307,928
Motor 214,436,223 240,820,959 | 18,518,899| 2,168,634 5,017,236 1,329,690 237,972,358 244,319,283
Marine 12,818,586 34,794,656 - - 3,225,114 (29,826,222) 16,043,700 4,968,434
Engineering 175,296,890 257,366,542 - - 41,034,826 | (128,641,489) 216,331,716 128,725,053
Micro 17,611,402 412,928 | 13,290,464 -1 (15,244,469) (201,009) 15,657,397 211,919
Aviation 55,549,239 310,641,808 - -1 127,546,285| (113,920,375) 183,095,524 196,721,433
Sfcfge and 35,228,528 27,838,279 - -l (3,695,125) 4,214,736 31,533,404 32,053,015
Miscellaneous 724,381,763 464,030,362 - -1(130,175,701) 8,755,588 594,206,063 472,785,950
Total 1,365,581,442 | 1,456,863,166 | 31,809,363 | 2,168,634 23,057,576 | (266,938,785) | 1,420,448,381 | 1,192,093,015
26. PREMIUMS CEDED Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Premiums ceded to reinsurers 1,136,110,195 1,179,814,582
Reinsurer’s share of change in unearned premiums 16,216,906 (299,822,158)
Total 1,152,327,101 879,992,424

Portfolio-wise detail of premiums ceded to reinsurers

Particulars

Premiums ceded to reinsurers

Reinsurer’s share of change in

unearned premiums

Premium ceded

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Fire 126,095,701 117,112,048 4,491,827 7,586,237 121,603,874 109,525,811
Motor 68,596,192 52,168,842 8,213,675 19,099,956 60,382,517 33,068,886
Marine 8,329,374 28,537,378 (4,468,715) 24,828,557 12,798,089 3,708,821
Engineering 168,011,107 253,611,039 (42,799,966) 126,764,422 210,811,073 126,846,617
Micro 17,473,880 - 8,736,940 - 8,736,940 -
Aviation 54,824,138 308,023,220 (126,599,541) 112,944,535 181,423,679 195,078,685
Cattle and crop 28,182,822 22,270,459 2,956,182 (3,371,871) 25,226,641 25,642,330
Miscellaneous 664,596,981 398,091,596 133,252,693 11,970,322 531,344,289 386,121,274
Total 1,136,110,195 1,179,814,582 (16,216,906) 299,822,158 1,152,327,101 879,992,424
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27.NET EARNED PREMIUMS

Gross earned premiums

Current Year
1,420,448,381

Amount in NRs.

Previous Year
1,192,093,015

Premiums ceded

1,152,327,101

879,992,424

Total

268,121,280

312,100,591

Portfolio-wise detail of net earned premiums

Particulars Gross earned premiums Premiums ceded Net earned premiums

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Fire 125,608,222 112,307,928 121,603,874 109,525,811 4,004,348 2,782,117
Motor 237,972,358 244,319,283 60,382,517 33,068,886 177,589,841 211,250,397
Marine 16,043,700 4,968,434 12,798,089 3,708,821 3,245,611 1,259,613
Engineering 216,331,716 128,725,053 210,811,073 126,846,617 5,520,643 1,878,436
Micro 15,657,397 211,919 8,736,940 - 6,920,457 211,919
Aviation 183,095,524 196,721,433 181,423,679 195,078,685 1,671,845 1,642,748
Cattle and crop 31,533,404 32,053,015 25,226,641 25,642,330 6,306,763 6,410,685
Miscellaneous 594,206,063 472,785,950 531,344,289 386,121,274 62,861,774 86,664,676
Total 1,420,448,381 1,192,093,015 1,152,327,101 879,992,424 268,121,280 312,100,591
28. COMMISSION INCOME Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Reinsurance commission income 107,986,329 148,524,114
Deferred commission income (51,396,095) (56,263,107)
Profit commission 16,652,124 2,475,288
Amortized deferred commission income 56,263,107 47,302,735
Total 129,505,465 142,039,030

Portfolio-wise detail of Commission Income

Deferred commission

Reinsurance commission

Profit commission Commission income

Particulars income income

CurrentYear PreviousYear CurrentYear PreviousYear CurrentYear Previous Year CurrentYear Previous Year
Fire 26,949,264 29,930,407 | (12,362,841)| (14,557,702) 8,848,279 1,405,016 37,992,404 28,239,322
Motor 13,895,911 14,218,862 (5,277,650) (1,532,178) 1,841,745 424,294 11,992,184 14,836,371
Marine 2,116,717 5,390,951 (800,862) (1,517,266) 1,109,288 20,699 3,942,410 5,413,446
Engineering 9,360,976 28,084,940 | (4,334,842)| (10,193,340) 953,176 242,696 16,172,650 18,135,888
Micro 617,393 - (305,296) - - - 312,097 -
Aviation 2,300,279 22,389,638 (327,483) (4,098,602) - - 6,071,398 21,618,335
Sf‘;ge and 4,606,021 3,785978| (2,326,690)|  (566,649) - - 2,845,979 5,975,680
Miscellaneous 48,139,768 44,723,338 | (25,660,431)| (23,797,370) 3,899,636 382,583 50,176,343 47,819,988
Total 107,986,329 | 148,524,114 (51,396,095) | (56,263,107)| 16,652,124 2,475,288 | 129,505,465, 142,039,030
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29.INVESTMENT INCOME
Particulars
Interest income from financial assets measured at amortised costs

Current Year

Amountin NRs.
Previous Year

i) Fixed deposit with “A” class financial institutions

169,330,573

167,733,907

ii) Fixed deposit with Infrastructure Bank

iii) Fixed deposit with “B” class financial institutions

7,228,724

6,983,235

iv) Fixed deposit with “C” class financial institutions

858,531

278,716

v) Debentures

768,822

vi) Bonds (Nepal Government / NRB / Guaranteed by Nepal Govern-
ment)

vii) Preference shares of bank and financial institutions

viii) Bank deposits other than fixed deposit

4,589,578

3,404,322

ix) Policyholder loan

x) Agent loan

xi) Employee loan

xii) Other Interest Income

Financial assets measured at FVTOCI

i) Interest income on debentures

i) Dividend income

4,319,754

2,159,328

iii) Other interest income

Financial assets measured at FVTPL

1) Dividend income

i) Other interest income

Rental income

Others

Total

187,095,982

180,559,508

30. NET GAINS/ (LOSSES) ON FAIR VALUE CHANGES
Particulars
Changes in fair value of financial assets measured at FVTPL

Current Year

Amountin NRs.
Previous Year

i) Equity instruments

i) Mutual fund

iii) Others

Changes in fair value on investment properties

Changes in fair value on hedged items in fair value hedges

Changes in fair value on hedging instruments in fair value

Gains/(losses) of ineffective portion on cash flow hedge

Others

Total

31. NET REALISED GAINS/ (LOSSES)

Particulars

Realised gains/(losses) on derecognition of financial assets measured at
FVTPL

Current Year

Amountin NRs.
Previous Year

i) Equity instruments

i) Mutual fund

iii) Others

Realised gains/(losses) on derecognition of financial assets at amortised
costs

i) Debentures

i) Bonds

iii) Others

Total
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32.0THER INCOME Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Unwinding of discount on financial assets at amortised cost
i) Employee loan - -
i) Bonds - -
iii) Others - -
Foreign exchange income - -
Interest income from finance lease - -
Profit from disposal of property, plant and equipment - 925,787
Amortization of deferred income - -
Stamp income 1,474,960 1,553,190
Allowances written back 917,585 -
Others 1,084,956 1,773,133
Total 3,477,501 4,252,110
33. GROSS CLAIMS PAID Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Gross claims paid 384,156,546 941,894,017
Total 384,156,546 941,894,017
34.CLAIMS CEDED Amountin NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Claims ceded to reinsurers 248,831,419 766,721,349
Total 248,831,419 766,721,349

Portfolio-wise detail of gross claims paid and claims Ceded

Net claims paid before change in

Gross claims paid

Claims ceded

Particulars contract liabilities

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Fire 43,163,911 12,279,930 30,720,926 11,687,285 12,442,985 592,645
Motor 85,793,534 111,152,713 14,137,776 8,477,380 71,655,758 102,675,333
Marine 819,128 8,928,660 528,720 5,190,976 290,408 3,737,684
Engineering 2,265,794 3,019,700 1,491,704 1,775,459 774,090 1,244,241
Micro 304,008 436,330 - - 304,008 436,330
Aviation 146,054,020 683,439,972 145,906,602 682,926,819 147,418 513,153
Cattle and crop 30,736,830 42,107,265 24,589,464 33,685,812 6,147,366 8,421,453
Miscellaneous 75,019,321 80,529,447 31,456,227 22,977,618 43,563,094 57,551,829
Total 384,156,546 941,894,017 248,831,419 766,721,349 135,325,127 175,172,668
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35. CHANGE IN CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Amount in NRs.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
(a) Gross change in contract liabilities
Change in contract outstanding claim 147,704,951 27,203,825
Change in IBNR and IBNER (189,705,153) (20,527,345)
Change in margin for adverse deviation (MAD) (14,920,944) -
Change in provision for premium deficiency (2,435,458)
Total gross change in contract liabilities (59,356,604) 6,676,480
(b) Change in reinsurance assets
SCig?]r;ge in reinsurance assets created on outstanding claim provi- 136,048,246 10,120,917
Change in reinsurance assets created on IBNR and IBNER (190,571,476) (80,225,088)
ggmg/‘e/_\lg)remsurance assets created on margin for adverse devia- (13,539,827) )
Chan.ge in reinsurance assets created on provision for premium 41,466 )
deficiency !
Total change in reinsurance assets (68,021,591) (70,104,171)
Net change in contract liabilities (127,378,195) (63,427,691)

Portfolio-wise detail of gross claims paid and claims Ceded

Particulars

Gross change in contract liabilities

Change in reinsurance assets

Net change in contract liabilities

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Fire (4,626,445) (17,055,371) (12,291,925) (23,852,936) (16,918,370) (40,908,307)
Motor (73,235,019) (11,440,557) (10,055,346) 1,472,279 (83,290,365) (9,968,278)
Marine 71,050,847 15,299,079 1,113,233 (7,350,827) 72,164,080 7,948,253
Engineering (21,396,029) (3,112,285) (21,186,613) (22,873,198) (42,582,642) (25,985,483)
Micro (6,096,665) 3,707,117 (2,561,452) 3,705,168 (8,658,117) 7,412,285
Aviation 164,505,097 14,469,649 157,019,021 4,026,894 321,524,118 18,496,543
Cattle and crop 2,035,800 8,597,827 3,893,219 (7,707,690) 5,929,019 890,137
Miscellaneous (191,594,190) (3,788,979) (183,951,729) (17,523,861) (375,545,919) (21,312,840)
Total (59,356,604) 6,676,480 (68,021,592) (70,104,171) (127,378,196) (63,427,691)
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36. COMMISSION EXPENSES Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Commission expenses on direct insurance contracts 14,868,491 14,170,931
Commission expenses on reinsurance accepted 257,045 180,343
Deferred commission expenses (7,421,904) (5,554,233)
Others

Amortization of deferred direct insurance contract expenses 5,535,363 5,733,164
Amortization of deferred commission expenses 18,870 141,215
Total 13,257,865 14,671,420

Portfolio-wise detail of Commission Expenses

Commission expenses on Commission expenses on Deferred commission ..
Particulars insurance contracts reinsurance accepted expenses e
CurrentYear PreviousYear CurrentYear PreviousYear CurrentYear PreviousYear CurrentYear Previous Year
Fire 1,248,847 1,138,106 - - (572,902) (546,099) 1,222,044 1,099,944
Motor 1,860,925 2,694,332 113,842 180,343 (750,014) (1,331,983) 2,556,736 3,092,781
Marine 94,127 988,526 - - (35,613) (337,924) 396,438 702,660
Engineering 1,133,613 2,643,246 - - (524,949) (965,223) 1,573,887 1,678,448
Micro 635 - 143,203 - (71,127) - 72,711 58
Aviation - - - - - (1,607,179) - -
Sf;ge and 5,225,895 4,093,372 - - (2639,814) (765,825) 3,351,906 5,943,578
Miscellaneous 5,304,449 2,613,349 - - (2,827,485) - 4,084,143 2,153,951
Total 14,868,491 14,170,931 257,045 180,343 | (7,421,904)| (5,554,233) 13,257,865 14,671,420
37.SERVICE FEES Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Gross service fees 13,973,908 14,590,319
Reinsurer’s share of service fees (11,042,967) (11,776,459)
Total 2,930,941 2,813,860

Portfolio-wise detail of service fees

Particulars Gross service fees Reinsurer’s share of service fees Net service fees

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Fire 1,302,588 1,209,576 1,260,957 1,171,120 41,631 38,456
Motor 2,329,551 2,429,896 500,773 500,002 1,828,778 1,929,894
Marine 128,186 347,947 83,294 285,374 44,892 62,573
Engineering 1,752,969 2,573,665 1,680,111 2,536,110 72,858 37,555
Micro 309,019 4,130 41,834 - 267,185 4,130
Aviation 555,492 3,106,418 548,241 3,080,232 7,251 26,186
Cattle and crop 352,285 278,383 281,828 222,705 70,457 55,678
Miscellaneous 7,243,818 4,640,304 6,645,929 3,980,916 597,889 659,388
Total 13,973,908 14,590,319 11,042,967 11,776,459 2,930,941 2,813,860
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38. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

Amountin NRs.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Salaries 48,819,428 44,211,273
Bonus 27,423,864 32,071,762
Defined benefit plans

i) Gratuity 4,128,801 3,939,613

i) Others - -
Defined contribution plans

i) Provident fund 4,654,699 3,602,655

i) Others - -
Leave encashments 4,154,041 3,082,851
Termination benefits - -
Dashain allowance 3,918,247 3,403,869
Other allowance 20,366,754 13,876,839
Training expenses 382,160 1,748,474
Uniform expenses 1,365,735 1,175,400
Medical expenses - -
Staff insurance expenses 1,992,490 1,487,913
Amortization of deferred employee expenses - -
Others (gift and novelties) 222,843 -
Total 117,429,062 108,600,649
39. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 5) 6,072,815 5,247,247
Depreciation on investment properties (Refer Note 6) - -
Amortization of intangible assets (Refer Note 4) 685,342 375,092
Total 6,758,157 5,622,339
40. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES Amountin NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Impairment losses on PPE, investment properties and intangible assets

i) Property, plant and equipment - -

ii) Investment properties - -

iii) Intangible assets - -
Impairment losses on financial assets

i) Investment - -

i) Loans - -

iii) Other financial assets - -

iv) Cash and cash equivalent - -

v) Others - -
Impairment losses on other assets

i) Reinsurance assets - -

i) Insurance receivables 1,743,508 1,262,679

iii) Lease receivables - -

iv) Others - -
Total 1,743,508 1,262,679
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41. OTHER EXPENSES Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Rent expenses 17,854,401 15,585,910
Electricity and water 1,893,292 2,849,966
Repair and maintenance
i) Building - 61,067
ii) Vehicle 473,268 630,048
i) Office equipment 107,400 160,183
iv) Others 607,694 479,081
Telephone and communication 4,617,196 4,324,254
Printing and stationary 2,791,072 3,535,941
Office consumable expenses 1,734,476 733,721
Fuel 2,251,678 2,547,557
Travelling expenses
i) Domestic 367,405 601,346
ii) Foreign 696,992 1,694,888
Agent training 129,282 276,942
Other agent expenses - -
Insurance premium 542,747 429,764
Security expenses 1,178,065 697,060
Legal and consulting expenses 5,328,922 7,107,385
Newspapers, books and periodicals 59,430 83,220
Advertisement and promotion expenses 2,200,674 2,712,893
Business promotion - -
Guest entertainment 1,665,293 1,864,797
Gift and donations - -
Board meeting fees and expenses
i) Meeting allowances 688,500 702,500
i) Other allowances - -
Other committee/ sub-committee expenses - -
i) Meeting allowances 364,000 217,000
ii) Other allowances - -
Annual general meeting expenses 1,386,810 -
Audit related expenses
i) Statutory audit 330,000 445,000
ii) Tax audit - -
i) Long form audit report 40,000 40,000
iv) Other fees 50,000 50,000
v) Internal audit 320,000 300,000
vi) Others - -
Bank charges 458,535 521,161
Fee and charges 1,243,788 1,738,080
Postage charges 718,241 786,880
Assets written off 10,531,349 1,255,671
Direct expenses 2,293,114 1,737,862
Others
Share related expenses 220,000 200,000
CSR activities 625,000 386,835
Foreign exchange loss 108,020 5,726,213
Aviation summit expenses - 1,835,785
Silver jubilee celebration - 3,528,512
Digital marketing 4,950,000 3,366,500
Micro expenses other direct expenses 55,050 126,762
Motor TPL expenses other direct expenses 1,084,590 -
Total 69,966,284 69,340,784
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42. FINANCE COST Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Unwinding of discount on provisions - -
Unwinding of discount on financial liabilities at amortised costs - -
Interest expenses - on financial liabilities at amortised costs - -
Interest Expenses - lease - -
Others - R
Total - -
43.INCOME TAX EXPENSE
a.Income tax expense Amountin NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Current tax - -
i) Income tax expenses for the year 75,620,841 83,620,934
ii) Income tax relating to prior periods 3,604,946 1,097,386
Deferred tax for the year
i) Originating and reversal of temporary differences (1,551,293) 17,517,789
i) Changes in tax rate - -
iii) Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses - -
iv) Write-down or reversal - -
v) Others -

Income tax expense 77,674,494 102,236,109
b. Reconciliation of taxable profit & accounting profit Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Accounting profit before tax 249,454,271 338,247,491
Applicable tax rate 30.00% 30.00%
Tax at the applicable rate on accounting profit 74,836,281 101,474,247

Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible / (included) for tax purpose

i) Provision for unrealized cheque written back (275,276) -

ii) Provision for investment written back - (84,000)

iii) Provision for doubtful debt - 187,528
Less: Tax effect on exempt income and additional deduction - -

i) Bonus on Income from dividend 54,606 43,904

ii) Dividend (546,063) (482,956)
Less: Adjustments to current tax for prior periods

i) Taxes pertaining to prior period 3,604,946 1,097,386

ii) - -
Add / (less): others

i) - -

ii) - -
Income tax expense 77,674,494 102,236,109
Effective tax rate 31.14% 30.23%
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44, Employee retirement benefits

The Company provides defined contribution plan, defined benefit plan and other long-term employee
benefit plan to its employees. Under contribution plan the Company pays pre-determined amounts to
publicly administered funds as per the local regulation and does not have any legal or informal obligations
to pay additional amounts. These comprise of contribution on account of provident fund. The Company's
defined benefit plan comprise of gratuity plan and long-term benefit plan comprise of earned leave.

The gratuity plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees, at retirement or termination of
employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and years of employment with the
Company. Gratuity is funded and deposited with Citizen Investment Trust towards meeting the gratuity
obligation.

Citizen Investment Trust is a public financial organization established under the Citizen Investment Trust
Act, 2047.The major shareholders of Citizen Investment Trust are Nepal Government, Nepal Rastra Bank,
Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd., Rastriya Beema Sansthan. Its shares are listed on Nepal Stock Exchange. Citizen
Investment Trust operates and manages various types of retirement schemes / programs.

The Gratuity Fund Scheme is operated by a committee of Citizen Investment Trust in accordance with terms and
conditions of Gratuity Scheme Operation Procedure, 2055 as approved by board of Citizen Investment Trust.

The earned leave plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees, at retirement or termination of
employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and number of unused accumulated
leaves balances of annual leave and sick leave. Earned leave is unfunded.

The value of these defined benefit plans and long-term employee benefit plan is determined by external
independent actuary as at the reporting dated, using the projected unit credit method. The actuarial
valuation involves making assumptions about the discount rates, salary increment rate, employees’ attrition
rate and balance service period of employees. Due to long term nature of the plans, such estimates are
subject to significant uncertainties.

a. Post employment benefit - Defined contribution plan
For the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) the company has recognised Rs. 4,654,699 (2075-76:
Rs. 3,602,655) as an expensesunder the defined contribution plans in the statement of profit or loss.

b. Post employment benefit - Defined benefit plan and long-term benefit plan
For defined benefit plan and long-term benefit plan, the cost of providing benefits is determined using
the projected unit credit method, based on the actuarial valuations.

c. Total expenses recognised in the statement of profit or loss
Amountin NRs.

Earned leave

Gratuity plan

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Current service cost 4,506,398 3,215,771 892,024 838,275
Past service cost - 800,030 - -
Net interest cost
a. Interest expense on defined benefit obligation (DBO) 2,896,985 4,686,511 349,682 409,312
b. Interest (income) on plan assets (3,274,582) (4,762,699) - -
c. Total net interest cost (377,597) (76,188) 349,682 409,312
Net Actuarial losses/(gains) recognized during the period - - 2,912,335 1,835,267
Defined benefit cost included in statement of profit or loss 4,128,801 3,939,613 4,154,041 3,082,854
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d. Remeasurement effects recognised in statement of other comprehensive income (OCl)

Particulars

Gratuity plan

Amount in NRs.

Earned leave

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

a. Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to financial assumption changes in DBO 6,362,308 (3,124,624) - -
b. Actuarial (Gain) / Loss — demographic assumptions 64,055 (285,148) - -
c. Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to experience on DBO 14,096,577 (3,717,130) - -
d. Return on plan assets (greater)/ less than discount rate (907,581) 1,709,510 - -
Total actuarial (gain)/ loss included in OCI 19,615,359 (5,417,392) - -

e. Total cost recognised in Comprehensive Income

Particulars

Gratuity plan

Current Year

Previous Year

Amount in NRs.

Earned leave

Current Year

Previous Year

Cost recognised in statement of profit or loss 4,128,801 3,939,613 4,154,041 3,082,854
Remeasurements effects recognised in OCI 19,615,359 (5,417,392) - -
Total cost recognised in comprehensive income 23,744,160 (1,477,779) 4,154,041 3,082,854

f. Change in defined benefit obligation

Particulars

Gratuity plan

Previous Year

Amount in NRs.

Earned leave

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year 44,413,154 50,464,456 5,340,110 4,128,778
Service cost 4,506,398 4,015,801 892,024 838,275
Interest cost 2,896,985 4,686,511 349,682 409,312
Benefits paid by the employer - - (1,911,803) (1,871,523)
Benefit payments from plan assets (3,805,438) (7,626,712) - -
Actuarial (gain)/ loss - financial assumptions 6,362,308 (3,124,624) - -
Actuarial (gain)/ loss - demographic financial assumptions 64,055 (285,148) - -
Actuarial (gain)/ Loss - experience 14,096,577 (3,717,130) 2,912,335 1,835,267
Total actuarial (gain)/ loss included in OCI 68,534,039 44,413,154 7,582,348 5,340,110

g. Change in defined benefit obligation

Particulars

Gratuity plan

Amount in NRs.

Earned leave

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Fair value of plan assets at end of prior year 50,378,187 52,918,881 - -
Expected return on plan assets 3,274,582 4,762,699 - -
Employer contributions 3,671,742 2,032,829 - -
Participant contributions - - - -
Benefit payments from plan assets (3,805,438) (7,626,712) - -
Transfer in/ transfer out - - - -
Actuarial gain/ (loss) on plan assets 907,581 (1,709,510) - -
Fair value of Plan Assets At End of Year 54,426,654 50,378,187 - -
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Gratuity plan

Current Year

Previous Year

Amount in NRs.

Earned leave

Current Year

Previous Year

Defined benefit obligation 68,534,039 44,413,154 7,582,348 5,340,110
Fair value of plan assets (54,426,654) (50,378,187) - -
(Surplus)/deficit recognised in statement of financial position 14,107,385 (5,965,033) 7,582,348 5,340,110
i. Expected company contributions for the next year Amountin NRs.

Particulars

Gratuity plan

Current Year

Previous Year

Earned leave

Current Year

Previous Year

Expected company contributions for the next year

22,087,626

j. Reconciliation of amounts in statement of financial position

Particulars

Gratuity plan

Amount in NRs.

Earned leave

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Net defined benefit liability/(asset) at prior year end (5,965,033) (2,454,425) 7,211,632 4,128,778
Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit or Loss 4,128,801 3,939,613 4,154,041 3,082,854
Total remeasurements included in OCI 19,615,359 (5,417,392) - -
Acquisition/ divestment - - - -
Employer contributions (3,671,742) (2,032,829) - -
Benefits Payouts - - - -
Net defined benefit liability/(asset) 14,107,385 (5,965,033) 11,365,673 7,211,632
k. Reconciliation of statement of other comprehensive income .
Amount in NRs.

Particulars

Gratuity plan

Current Year

Previous Year

Earned leave

Current Year

Previous Year

Cumulative OCI - (Income)/Loss, beginning of period 3,169,571 8,586,963 - -
Total remeasurements included in OCI 19,615,359 (5,417,392) - -
Cumulative OCI - (Income)/Loss 22,784,930 3,169,571 - -

l. Current / Non-current liability

Particulars

Gratuity plan

Amount in NRs.

Earned leave

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Liability 14,107,385 = 1,175,329 812,806
Non - Current Liability - (5,965,033) 6,407,019 4,527,304
Total 14,107,385 (5,965,033) 7,582,348 5,340,110

m. Reconciliation of statement of other comprehensive income

Gratuity plan

Amountin NRs.

Earned leave

Particulars CurrentYear Previous Year CurrentYear Previous Year
Within 1 year 6,220,691 4,328,875 - -
Between 1-2 years 8,071,877 6,539,043 - -
Between 2-5 years 17,882,996 13,371,446 - -
From 6 to 10 30,380,228 17,662,783 - -
Total 62,555,792 41,902,147 - -
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n. Plan assets

Particulars

Gratuity plan

Amount in NRs.

Earned leave

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

(% Invested) (% Invested) (% Invested) (% Invested)

Government securities 0% 0% 0% 0%
Corporate bonds (including public sector bonds) 0% 0% 0% 0%
Mutual funds 0% 0% 0% 0%
Deposits 0% 0% 0% 0%
Cash and bank balances 0% 0% 0% 0%
Retirement fund 100% 100% 0% 0%
Others 0% 0%

Total 100% 100% 0% 0%

o. Sensitivity analysis

Particulars

Gratuity plan

Amount in NRs.

Earned leave

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Effect in defined benefit obligation due to 1% increase in discount rate (4,470,701) (2,812,675) - -
E;Ezct in defined benefit obligation due to 1% decrease in discount 5,264,537 3,471,503 ) B
:Effect in defined benefit obligation due to 1% increase in salary esca- 4,958,752 3,266,403 . B
ation rate

Effect in defined benefit obligation due to 1% decrease in salary . B
escalation rate (3,971,670) (2,643,375)

Effect in defined benefit obligation due to 1% increase in attrition rate (154,566) (94,060) - -
Effect in defined benefit obligation due to 1% decrease in attrition rate 282,499 186,664 - -

p. Assumptions

Amountin NRs.

Particulars Gratuity plan Earned leave

Discount rate 6.50% 5.00%
Escalation rate (rate of increase in compensation levels) 5.00% 5.00%
Attrition rate (employee turnover) 9.30% 8.89%

Mortality rate during employment

Nepali Assured Lives
Mortality (2009)

Nepali Assured Lives
Mortality (2009)
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45, Risk management framework
45.1 Governance framework
The primary objective of the Company’s risk and financial management framework is to ensure
that it will be above to continue as a going concern so that is can continue to provide returns to the
shareholders through sustainable achievement of financial performance objective. Key management
recognises the critical importance of having efficient and effective risk management systems in place.

The board of directors and senior management manages the risks through various committees and
delegated authorities. As part of the important activity within the Company, the risks are reviewed on
regular basis and strategies are timely adopted to manage these risks. The risks are identified with clear
understanding of market environment, regulatory environment and economic changes.

45.2 Insurance risks
The principal risk the Company is subjected under insurance contract is that actual claims and benefits
payments or the timing thereof, may differ from expectations. This is influenced by the frequency of the
claims, severity of claims, actual benefits paid and subsequent development of long-term claims. The
objective of the Company, is therefore, to ensure that sufficient reserves are available to cover these
liabilities.

The risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across portfolio of insurance contracts. The risk is
also mitigated by careful selection and implementation of underwriting guidelines as well as use of
reinsurance arrangements.

The Company considers insurance risk to be a combination of the following components:
e Product design risk

e Underwriting risk

® Reinsurance risk

e (Claim risk

Q

. Product design risk
The Company issues general insurance contracts such as fire, marine, motor, marine, engineering,
micro, aviation, cattle and crop and miscellaneous. The significant risks arising under general insurance
portfolio are from changes in the climate leading to natural disasters, behavioral trends of peoples due
the change in their life styles and steady escalation of costs in respect of motor industry.

The above risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts
and geographical areas. Variability of risk is improved by careful selection and implementation of
underwriting strategies, which are designed to ensure that risks are diversified in the term of type of risk.

Line of business For the year ended For the year ended
Ashad 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) Ashad 31, 2076 (July 16,2019)
Gross written Concentration Gross written Concentration
premium Percentage premium Percentage

Fire 130,258,811 9% 120,957,632 8%
Motor 232,955,122 17% 242,989,592 17%
Marine 12,818,586 1% 34,794,656 2%
Engineering 175,296,890 13% 257,366,542 18%
Micro 30,901,866 2% 412,928 0%
Aviation 55,549,239 4% 310,641,808 21%
Cattle and crop 35,228,528 3% 27,838,280 2%
Miscellaneous 724,381,763 52% 464,030,362 32%
Total 1,397,390,805 1,459,031,800
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The Company’s insurance risk based on the line of business concentration is as follows:

b. Underwriting risk
Underwriting involves measuring risk exposure and determining the premium that needs to be
charged to undertake the insurance risk. Underwriting risk generally arise either from an inaccurate
assessment of the risks entailed in writing and insurance policy or from factors wholly out of the
underwriter’s control.

The majority of underwriting risk to which the Company is exposed is of a short-term nature, and
generally does not exceed 12 months. The company’s underwriting strategy aims to ensure that the
underwritten risks are well diversified in terms of the type, amount of risk, and geography in order to
ensure that the Company minimises the volatility of its insurance result.

The above risk exposure is mitigated by improving the knowledge and skills of the underwriting staffs.
Further, statistical database is maintained to enable proper decisions are taken during underwriting
of insurance risks undertaken. Also, financial authority limits are in place for underwriting, clearly
prescribing the limits to underwrite based on the sum insured and risk undertaken. Pricing is done by
modelling all identified risks, using appropriate methodologies depending on the complexity of the
risks and available data. Adequate buffers are kept in the premiums to cushion against the risk that
actual experience may turn out to be worse than expected.

¢. Reinsurance risk
Reinsurance risk refers to the inability of the Company to obtain insurance from reinsurers at the right
time and at the appropriate cost.

The above risk exposure is mitigated by choosing globally highly trusted reinsurance companies
for reinsurance placements. The company has reinsurance treaty with the following reinsurance

companies:
Name of reinsurers Rating Issuing agency
General Insurance Corporation of India, India A- AM Best
Trust International Insurance and Reinsurance Company, Bahrain A- AM Best
Zep Re (PTA Reinsurance Company) Nairobi, Kenya B+ AM Best
Kenya Reinsurance Corporation Ltd., Nairobi, Kenya B+ AM Best
East Africa Reinsurance Corporation Ltd., Nairobi, Kenya B AM Best
The New India Assurance Company Limited A AM Best
XL Catlin A AM Best
Royal Insurance Corporation of Bhutan., Bhutan B+ AM Best
GIC Bhutan Reinsurance Company Limited NA NA
Asian Reinsurance Company Limited B+ AM Best
Bupa, UK AAA S&P
Sirius International, Bermuda A AM Best
Nepal Reinsurance Company Ltd., Nepal NA NA

d. Claim risk
Claim risk refers to risk that the actual claims or the timing thereof may differ from expectation and
sufficient reserves may not be available to cover these liabilities.

The above risk exposure is mitigated by implementing strict claim review policies to assess all new and
ongoing claims. Regular detailed review of claims handling procedure and frequent investigation of
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possible fraudulent claims are put in place to reduce the risk exposure of the Company. The Company
further enforces a policy of actively managing and promptly pursuing claims in order to reduce its
exposure to unpredictable future developments that may negatively impact the business.

The Company seeks to reduce its claim risk through the use of experience actuaries who estimates
actuarial indication of the required reserves to be made based on claims experience, business volume,
anticipated change in the claims environment and claims cost.

i. Sensitivities
The Company’s claim liabilities are sensitive to key assumptions as mentioned in the table below.
The following analysis is performed for possible movements in key assumptions with all other
assumptions held constant, showing the impact on gross and net liabilities, profit before tax
and profit after tax. The correlation of assumptions will have a significant effect in determining
the ultimate claims liabilities, but to demonstrate the impact due to changes in assumptions,
assumptions had to be changed on an individual basis.

For the year ended on Ashadh 31,2077 (2076-77)

Amount in NRs.
Changes in Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
Particulars Assumg tions (Decrease) on (Decrease)on  (Decrease) - Profit (Decrease) -
P Gross Liabilities Net Liabilities Before Tax Profit After Tax
Average claim cost +10% 167,118,499 | (155,284,378) (50,249,776) (35,174,843)
Average number of claims +10% 5,935,660 (866,499) 866,499 606,549
Average claim cost -10% (167,118,499) 155,284,378 50,249,776 35,174,843
Average number of claims -10% (5,935,660) 866,499 (866,499) (606,549)

For the year ended on Ashadh 31, 2076 (2075-76)

Amount in NRs.

Changes in Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
Particulars Assumg tions (Decrease) on (Decrease)on  (Decrease) - Profit (Decrease) -
P Gross Liabilities Net Liabilities Before Tax Profit After Tax
Average claim cost +10% 161,182,839 (148,482,219) (106,890,022) (74,823,015)
Average number of claims +10% (667,648) (7,678,065) 7,678,065 5,374,646
Average claim cost -10% (161,182,839) 148,482,219 106,890,022 74,823,015
Average number of claims -10% 667,648 7,678,065 (7,678,065) (5,374,646)

ii. Claim development table
The following tables show the estimates of cumulative incurred claims, including both claims

notified and IBNR for each successive accident year at each reporting date, together with
cumulative payments to date.
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Gross insurance contract outstanding claim provision

Amount in NRs.

Year of Incident >PY4 PY 4 PY3 PY2 PY1 C‘\’{::r“t Total
At end of incident year 249,934,524 249,934,524
One year later 274,859,435 274,859,435
Two year later 17,218,311 17,218,311
Three year later 44,348,561 44,348,561
Four year later 12,000,000 12,000,000
More than Four years 1,137,134,696 1,137,134,696
Currentestimate of | 157134 606 | 12,000,000 | 44348561 | 17,218,311 | 274,859,435 | 249,934,524 | 1,735,495,528
cumulative claims
At end of incident year 121,754,529 121,754,529
One year later 245,800,449 245,800,449
Two year later 11,975,311 11,975,311
Three year later 2,371,561 2,371,561
Four year later - -
More than Four years 2,254,696 2,254,696
f::jg‘;':t"’e payments 2,254,696 -| 2371561 | 11,975,311 | 245,800,449 | 121,754,529 | 384,156,547
Gross insurance
contract outstanding 1,134,880,000 | 12,000,000 | 41,977,000 5,243,000 | 29,058,986 | 128,179,995 | 1,351,338,981
claim provision

Net insurance contract outstanding claim provision
Amount in NRs.

Year of Incident >PY4 PY4 PY3 PY2 PY1 c‘\'(’e’::“ Total
At end of incident year 91,831,908 91,831,908
One year later 65,059,104 65,059,104
Two year later 7,754,751 7,754,751
Three year later 1,147,271 1,147,271
Four year later 26 26
More than four years 207,381 207,381
Current estimate of 207,381 26 1,147,271 | 7754751 | 65,059,104 | 91,831,908 | 166,000,441
cumulative claims
At end of incident year 64,339,867 64,339,867
One year later 61,619,017 61,619,017
Two year later 7,539,661 7,539,661
Three year later 1,140,744 1,140,744
Four year later - -
More than four years 8,400 8,400
f:g;‘t’ft"’e payments 8,400 - 1,140,744 | 7539661 | 61,619,017 | 64339867 | 134,647,689
Gross insurance
contract outstanding 198,981 26 6,527 215,090 3,440,088 27,492,040 31,352,752
claim provision
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Insurance contract liabilities are created to cover this risk based on the actuarial valuation report.

The table below sets out the concentration of risk associated with above mentioned products. Risk as
at year end has been measured as insurance contract liabilities and disclosed as below:

Amount in NRs.
Current Year Previous Year
PO o< RO Netlabiies | S P eriabiies
Fire 132,456,383 124,807,229 7,649,154 123,179,348 108,023,477 15,155,871
Motor 224,625,596 51,236,856 | 173,388,740 156,407,813 32,967,835 | 123,439,978
Marine 49,178,775 38,340,194 10,838,581 123,454,737 43,922,141 79,532,596
Engineering 1,274,871,169 | 1,269,078,084 5,793,085 | 1,294,509,966 | 1,290,691,437 3,818,529
Micro 21,738,282 11,489,076 10,249,206 397,147 190,684 206,463
Aviation 85,449,710 84,560,528 889,182 377,501,092 368,179,090 9,322,002
Cattle and Crop 37,025,154 29,680,874 7,344,280 35,365,830 30,617,912 4,747,918
Miscellaneous 573,246,217 533,774,081 39,472,136 251,476,326 216,569,659 34,906,667
Total 2,398,591,286 | 2,142,966,922 255,624,364 2,362,292,259 2,091,162,235 271,130,024

46. Fair value measurement

46.1 Financial instruments by category and hierarchy
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial
Instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and
for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company
has classified its financial instruments into three levels as prescribed by the applicable NFRS.

Amount in NRs.
Current Year Previous Year
Particulars FVTPL FVOCI Amortised FVTPL FVoCI Amortised
Cost Cost

Investments

::‘S’terztr':::tts'” equity 1 | 881,276,128 - -1 217,711,439 -
'F':J"nejzme”t in mutual 1 -| 20252025 - | 17,267,744 -
Investment in debentures 3 - - 17,000,000 - - -
Fixed deposits 3 - - | 1,771,500,000 - - | 1,743,000,000
Other financial assets 3 - - 187,427,337 - - 19,989,948
Cash and cash equivalents 1 - - 285,439,474 - - 325,766,780
Total Financial Assets - 901,528,153 | 2,261,366,811 - 234,979,183 | 2,088,756,728
Other financial liabilities 3 - - 43,038,665 - - 44,835,245
Total Financial Liabilities = = 43,038,665 = - 44,835,245
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An explanation of each level is provided below:

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed
equity instruments and units of mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity
instruments and units of mutual fund which are traded on the stock exchanges is valued using the
closing price as at the reporting date.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as
possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3.

There is no transfer of financial instruments between different levels as mentioned above during the year.

46.2 Valuation technique used to determine fair value
In respect of investment in equity instruments that are listed in the Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd. the
quoted price of the instrument has as at the date of statement of financial position has been used. In
respect investment in unquoted equity instruments, the cost of such instrument has been deemed to be
the fair value.

Fair value of remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.

46.3 Valuation process
The finance and accounts department of the Company performs the valuation of financial assets and
liabilities required for financial reporting purposes. Discussion on valuation processes and results are
held at least once in a year.

The main level 3 inputs are derived and evaluated as follows:

e Discount rate is arrived at considering the internal and external factors.
e Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current, and the impact of the dis-
counting is material.

46.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

Amount in NRs.
Current Year Previous Year
Particulars
Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value

Investments
Investment in Debentures 17,000,000 17,000,000 - -
Fixed Deposit 1,771,500,000 1,771,500,000 1,743,000,000 1,743,000,000
Other Financial Assets 187,427,337 187,427,337 19,989,948 19,989,948
Total Financial Liabilities at 1,975927,337 1975927337 1,762,989,948 1,762,989,948
Amortised Cost
Other Financial Liabilities 43,038,665 43,038,665 44,835,245 44,835,245
Uil el HE AU 43,038,665 43,038,665 44,835,245 44,835,245

Amortised Cost

The carrying amounts of other financial assets, insurance receivables, cash and cash equivalents, insurance
payables and other financial liabilities are same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.
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47. Financial risk management
47.1 Credit risk
Credit risk is counter-party default risk and includes the risk of failure of financial institutions with which the
Company have placed deposits / investment to meet its contractual obligations, and the failure of reinsurers
to meet claims when they fall due. It also includes risk of default by policyholders on premium receivables.

The Company’s placement in debt instruments is primarily in fixed deposit with commercial banks,
development banks and other financial institutions that are held at amortised cost of Rs. 1,776,127,300
(2075-76: Rs. 1,753,090,440) and in debentures issued by listed companies Rs. 17,545,586 (2075-76: Rs.
nil) which are managed and monitored by the investment committee of the Company. The Company
carries other financial assets, such as balances with banks, advance to employees and other receivables.
Bank deposits in fixed and other short-term deposit accounts are held with commercial banks,
development banks and other financial institutions having a strong financial position and taking into
account the experience of the Company over time, the counter party risk attached to such assets is
considered insignificant.

Advance to employees and other receivables are monitored on regular basis and is recovered on timely
basis. Allowance for impairment is made for loss incurred assets if any.

Credit risk to external reinsurers appears when insurance exposures are transferred by the Company

to external reinsurance companies to mitigate insurance risks. Potential losses can arise due to non-
recoverability of reinsurance receivables that are under reinsurance treaties in force. The Company has
selected its reinsurers with high credit rating and reviews their rating periodically. The information of
the reinsurers is provided in 45.2 (c) above. The Company’s exposures to reinsurance risk are placed with
highly rated reinsurers and taking into account the experience of the Company over time, the counter
party risk attached to insurance receivables is minimal except for receivable of Rs. 162,554,916 (2075-76:
Rs. 162,554,916) due from Aviation Assets Management Ltd, which has since been liquidated and has not
been recovered. The company also has receivable of Rs. 625,094 (2075-76: Rs. 625,094) recoverable from
local insurance company under facultative arrangement which has not been recovered. Allowance for
impairment for these amounts have been made in the financial statements.

The Company does not have a policy of providing credit facility against issued policy document as
per regulatory restrictions. However, in respect of agriculture insurance, 25% of the premium amount
is recovered at the time of issue of the policy and balance 75% is guaranteed by the Government of
Nepal as subsidy to the farmers which it paid to the Company through the Insurance Board of Nepal.
Accordingly, the counter party risk attached to the amount due from policyholders is minimal.

The Company uses the incurred loss model for impairment of financial assets. The detail of allowance for
financial assets recognised is as follows:

Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous year
Balance of loss allowance as at Ashadh 31, 2076 164,097,595 163,460,010
Add: Loss allowance recognised during the year 1,743,508 637,585
Less: Loss allowance written back during the year (917,585) -
Balance of loss allowance as at Ashadh 31,2077 164,923,518 164,097,595

Loss allowance has been recognised for receivable from reinsurance company and local insurance
company and for cheque received that have not been realised.

47.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial instruments as they fall due.
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The Company maintains investment in accordance with the investment policy issued by the Insurance Board
of Nepal. The Company has also invested in highly marketable securities that can be liquidated in the event
of unforeseen contingencies. Further, the investment committee reviews the liquidity level of investments
and takes appropriate actions to improve the liquidity position.

Insurance receivables includes amount receivables from local insurance businesses under local facultative
arrangement and from reinsurers under reinsurance arrangement for paid losses. These are recognised and
measured at fair value of the considerations to be received.

Insurance receivables also includes sundry debtors which are recognised when due and are initially
measured at fair value on the consideration receivable. This receivable represents agriculture insurance
policy which are subsidized by the government of Nepal to the extent of 75% of the premium invoiced
amount. Collectability of premiums is reviewed on an ongoing basis.

The following table represents the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities

As at Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

Amount in Rs.

Particulars Notes 0-3 Months 3-12 Months 1-2 Years Over 2 Years No Sta?ed
Maturity

Financial assets
Zm’:;f;jscf: measuredat | 433,500,000 | 808,000,000 | 399,000,000 | 148000000 |- 1,788,500,000
Sana\?(;iCall assetsmeasured | - - - - 901,528,153 | 901,528,153
Other financial assets 15 187,427,337 | - - - - 187,427,337
Insurance receivables 13 - 96,650,614 - - - 96,650,614
Cash and cash equivalent 16 285439474 | - - - - 285,439,474
Total financial assets 906,366,311 904,650,614 | 399,000,000 | 148,000,000 901,528,153 3,259,545,578
Financial liabilities
Insurance payables 20 - 477,221,132 | - - - 477,221,132
Other financial liabilities 23 - 43,038,665 - - - 43,038,665
Total financial liabilities - 520,259,797 | - - - 520,259,797
Excess liquidity 906,366,811 384,390,817 | 399,000,000 | 148,000,000 901,528,153 2,739,285,781

As at Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019)

Amount in Rs.

Particulars Notes 0-3 Months  3-12 Months 1-2 Years Over 2 Years No Stafed Total
Maturity

Financial assets
Zit”aar:giisa:;ect; ::easured 10 123,500,000 | 973,500,000 | 516,000,000 | 130,000,000 | - 1,743,000,000
Eit”;\;‘ga' assetsmeasured | - - - - 234979,183 | 234979,183
Other financial assets 15 19,989,948 - - - - 19,989,948
Insurance receivables 13 - 189,011,516 - - - 189,011,516
Cash and cash equivalent 16 325,766,780 - - - - 325,766,780
Total financial assets 469,256,728 1,162,511,516 | 516,000,000 130,000,000 234,979,183 2,512,747,427
Financial liabilities
Insurance payables 20 - 462,222,766 462,222,766
Other financial liabilities 23 - 100,339,199 100,339,199
Total financial liabilities - 562,561,965 - - - 562,561,965
Excess liquidity 469,256,728 599,949,551 516,000,000 130,000,000 234,979,183 1,950,185,462
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47.3 Market risk
Market risk is the risk of possible adverse movements in the value of financial instrument due to change
in market factors, such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and equity prices, and will affect the
Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. Market risk is the aggregation of:

Interest rate risk
Foreign currency risk
Price risk

i. Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of future cash flows of the financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in interest rates.

The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the
Company’s fixed deposits and short-term deposits with banks and financial institutions and
investment in debentures issued by listed companies. The company monitors its interest rate risk on a
periodic basis by analyzing the movement in interest rate and manages its cash flows.

ii. Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in
foreign exchange rates.

The Company faces minimal risk due to foreign currency since it does not have material assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currency. The Company maintains dollar account with commercial
banks the balance of which is US$ 130,846.10 equivalent to Rs. 15,749,945 (2075-76: 934,229.37
equivalent to Rs. 102,165,109).

iii. Price risk
Price risk is the risk that the value of financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in the price of
the securities or portfolio of securities.

The Company classifies its investment portfolio into debt securities, equity instruments and units of
mutual fund. The debts securities are predominantly held in fixed deposits with commercial banks
and other financial institutions and debentures issued by listed companies. Fixed deposits and
debentures are not traded in the market and the price risk on these securities is negligible. In respect
of investment in equity instrument and units of mutual funds, which are listed and traded in the
market through Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd., the management follows the guidelines as mentioned in
the investment policy and monitors the price of these securities on a regular basis.

The Company holds investment in quoted equity instruments of Rs. 880,276,128 (2075-76: Rs.
55,694,639) and in units of mutual fund of Rs. 20,252,025 (2075-76: Rs. 17,267,744). Changes in the fair
value of these instruments are recognised through OCI.

Increase/decrease in the prices of these securities by 1% basis points with all other variables held
constant, would result a gain / loss of Rs. 9,005,282 (2075-76: Rs. 729,624) in other comprehensive
income.

48. Operational risk
This is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the Company'’s
processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure and from external factors other than credit, market and
liquidity risks, such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standard
of corporate governance. Operational failures could result in producing misleading financial information,
loss of return, financial penalties from regulators or damage to the reputation of the Company.
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The Company has controls of effective segregation of duties, access controls, authorisations, training

and assessments procedures. Corporate governance standards are strictly implemented by the board of
directors. Risks from change in regulatory environment, technology are monitored in its strategic planning
and processes.

49, Capital management

The Company manages its capital with the following management objectives and approaches:

To maintain the minimum paid up capital as required by its regulator, Insurance Board of Nepal.
To maintain required level of stability for providing a degree of security to the policyholders.
To allocate capital efficiently that supports the development of the Company’s business so that it can con-
tinue to provide returns to the shareholders.

e To maintain financial strength to support new business growth and to satisfy the requirements of the pol-
icyholders, regulators and stakeholders.

Operation of the Company are also subject to regulatory requirements of the Insurance Board of Nepal.
The Insurance Board has prescribed minimum paid up capital, solvency margin and investment policy to
minimise risk of insolvency on the part of the insurance companies to meet unforeseen liabilities that may
arise.

The Company maintains the minimum paid up capital of Rs. 1,000,000,000 as per the regulation prescribed
by the Insurance Board. It also maintains solvency and investment as per the regulations prescribed. It
maintains a solvency ratio of as per the regulatory requirement.

a. Dividend
Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year IS0 IOV
(i) Dividends recognised
Final cash dividend for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2076 of Rs. 3.75 per fully paid share 38,520,000 -
Bonus share for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2076 of Rs. 4 per fully paid share 41,088,000 -

(i) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period

In addition to the above dividends, for the year ended the directors have recommended
the payment of a final dividend of Rs. 3.75 per fully paid equity share (2075-76:Rs. 3.75
per fully paid share). This proposed dividend is subject to the approval of shareholders in
the ensuing annual general meeting

40,060,800 38,520,000
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50. Earnings per share (EPS)

Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Profit for the year 171,779,777 236,011,382
Add: Interest saving on convertible bonds - -
Profit for the year used for calculating diluted earnings per share 171,779,777 236,011,382
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year | 10,682,880 10,272,000

for basic earnings per share

Adjustments for calculation of diluted earnings per share:

i) Dilutive shares - -

ii) Options - -

iii) Convertible bonds - -

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year | 10,682,880 10,272,000
for diluted earnings per share

Nominal value of equity shares 100.00 100.00
Basic earnings per share 16.08 2298
Diluted earnings per share 16.08 2298
Restated earnings per share 16.08 22.09

51. Segment reporting
Segment information is presented in respect of the Company’s business segments. Management of the
Company has identified portfolio as business segment and the Company’s internal reporting structure is
also based on portfolio. Performance is measured based on segment profit as management believes that
it is most relevant in evaluating the results of segment relative to other entities that operate within these
industries.

Segment asset is disclosed below based on total of all asset for each business segment.

The Company operates predominantly in Nepal and accordingly, the management of the Company is of the
view that the financial information by geographical segments of the Company’s operation is not necessary
to be presented.

Business segments of the company are:
i. Fire

ii. Motor

iii. Marine

iv. Engineering

v. Micro

vi. Aviation

vii. Cattle and Crop

viii. Miscellaneous
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¢. Reconciliation of segmental profit with statement of profit or loss

Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Segmental profit 121,444,035 220,457,951
Less: Depreciation and amortization (675,816) (562,234)
Less: Non-cash expenses other than depreciation and amortization - -
Less: Un-allocable corporate expenditures (18,913,885) (17,920,411)
Add: Un-allocable other income 147,599,937 136,272,185
Less: Finance cost - -
Profit before tax 249,454,271 338,247,491
d. Reconciliation of assets
Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Segment assets 2,150,388,826 2,096,716,468
Intangible assets 5,926,135 1,736,477
Property, plant and equipment 55,418,008 63,477,073
Investment properties - -
Deferred tax assets - 34,109,930
Investments 2,690,028,153 1,977,979,183
Loans - -
Current tax assets (Net) 16,567,182 8,943,803
Other assets 603,091,376 535,251,874
Total assets 5,521,419,680 4,718,214,808
e. Reconciliation of liabilities
Amount in NRs
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Segment liabilities 2,449,987,381 2,418,555,367
Provisions 21,689,733 (624,921)
Deferred tax liabilities 154,602,727 -
Current tax liabilities (Net) - -
Other financial liabilities 43,038,665 44,835,245
Other liabilities 525,741,919 506,298,858
Total liabilities 3,195,060,425 2,969,064,549
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52. Related party disclosure
The Company does not have any holding, subsidiary company and associate companies.

a. Key management personnel
Key management personnel are those having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Company. Key management personnel include the board of directors and
chief executive officer of the Company as follows:

Name of key management personnel Designation

Mr. Mahendra Krishna Shrestha Chairman

Mr. Bikram Krishna Shrestha Director

Mr. Vijit Krishna Shrestha Director

Mr. Ajaya Ratna Sthapit Public Director

Mrs. Nura Kumari Sharma Public Director

Mr. Dashrath Lal Shrestha Independent Director
Mr. Sushil Bajracharya Chief Executive Officer

b. Key management personnel compensation

Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Short-term employment benefit 5,766,738 4,957,368
Total 5,766,738 4,957,368
¢. Payment to chief executive officer
Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Annual salary and allowances 3,751,000 3,131,150
Performance based allowances - -
i) Employee bonus 2,003,438 724,923
ii) Benefits as per prevailing provisions 12,300 1,101,295
iii) Incentives - -
Insurance related benefits - -
i) Life Insurance - -
ii) Accident insurance - -
iii) Health insurance (including family members) 22,588 20,126
Total 5,789,326 4,977,494

53. Leases
The Company has various operating leases ranging from 1 years to 10 years. All these operating leases are
cancellable lease agreements. Rental expenses for operating leases recognised in statement of profit or loss
for the year is Rs. 17,854,401 (2075-76: Rs. 15,585,910).

54, Commitment and contingencies

The amount of capital commitments and as on the date of statement of financial position is Rs. 3,390,633
(2075-76: Rs. nil).
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55. Staff bonus
Staff bonus has been calculated based on lower of profit before bonus and tax as per GAAP and profit before
bonus and tax as per NFRS. For the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020), profit before bonus and tax
as per GAAP of Rs. 274,238,640 is lower than profit before bonus and tax as per NFRS of Rs. 276,878,135.
Accordingly, bonus of Rs. 27,423,864 as per GAAP has been provided as staff bonus.

56. Liability adequacy test
The Company has engaged TransValue Consultants of Mumbai, India, an external independent actuary, to
actuarially determine the amount of outstanding claims reserves (OCR), incurred but not reported (IBNR)
claims, unexpired risk reserve (URR) as part of liability adequacy test (LAT). This test is done by the Company
annually and the required reserves are recognised as per the amount determined under liability adequacy
test and regulatory requirements of the Insurance Board of Nepal. IBNR is calculated using Basic Chain
Ladder Method. Liability is recognized at higher of the two estimated liabilities.
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Annexure ll

MANAGEMENT REPORT
YEAR ENDED UPTO ASHADH 31, 2077

1. General Information related to Himalayan General Insurance Co. Ltd.
Himalayan General Insurance Co. Ltd (referred to as ‘HGI') has been established in accordance with
Department of commerce on November 23, 1988 with the objective of promoting and assist in progressive
development of insurance service in Nepal.

HGI commenced operations from December 1993 to write Insurance Policies after obtaining license from the
Insurance Board of Nepal to underwrite General Insurance (Non-life) business.

HGI has been operating Non-life insurance business after renewing its licence every year from Beema Samiti.
HGI has been doing insurance of Fire, Marine, Vehicle, Engineering and Contractor, Aviation, Agriculture,
Micro and Miscellaneous portfolio.

2. Insurer’s Board of Directors shall approve following matters:

a. The license issued by Beema Samiti to carry insurance business is valid.

b. Tax, service charges, fine and penalties to be paid under laws & regulation are paid.

¢. Share structure of the insurer is in line with prevailing laws & regulation.

d. Solvency ratio as prescribed by Beema Samiti is maintained.
¢ The amount mentioned in the financial statement regarding assets that financial amount contained in

SOFP are not overstated than it’s fair value.

e The assets recognized in financial statements is depreciated on WDV basis.

e. Investments made by HGl are in line with prevailing laws.

f. Insurer manages reinsurance in accordance with the reinsurance directives of Beema Samiti regarding
minimization of all types of risk.

g. Insurer does not have any office outside the country.

h. During the year, the company has settled claim, details of which can be shown in the table below.

Particulars Till 6 months  Upto One year Two years WU ETT
2 years

Claim Settled 3795 313 198 126

Outstanding Claim 732 162 11 15

i. Number of claim settled within the year and outstanding claim number and time frame to settle the
outstanding claim.

j. Financial Statement has been prepared on compliance with the provision of Insurance Act 2049, Insurance
Regulation 2049, Company Act 2063, NFRSs and other prevailing laws & regulation to which insurer shall
adhere to.

k. The accounting policy has been consistently adopted.

l. The Financial Statements as at Ashad 31, 2077, are presented true & fairly.

m. Board of Directors has implemented adequate and appropriate provision to safeguard the assets and for
identification and mitigation against losses due to fraud, embezzlement and irregularities.

n. The Financial Statements have been prepared based on going concern basis.

o. The internal control system is commensurate with the size, nature & volume of the insurer’s business.

p. Insurer has not conducted any transactions contrary to Insurance Act, 2049, Companies Act, 2063, related
regulations and directions with any person, firm, company and insurer’s director or with any entity in which
insurer’s director has interest.

g. No any penalties are levied by Beema Samiti for the financial year 2076-77.

r. For the safeguard of our risk for F/Y 2076-77, Insurer has appointed International standard Re-insurer GIC, India
and XL Re, Singapore.
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Annexurelll

MAJOR FINANCIAL INDICATOR

: . Fiscal Year
Particulars Indicators Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5
Net worth NRs. 1,826,013,626.00 | 1,694,305,142.00 | 1,434,879,124.00 | 694,941,536.00 | 598,745,260.00
Number of Shares Number 10,682,880.00 10,272,000.00 10,272,000.00 3,852,000.00 3,210,000.00
Book value per shares NRs. 170.93 164.94 154.78 199.33 215.46
Net Profit NRs. 171,779,777.00| 236,011,382.00| 127,178,103.00| 106,899,087.00| 129,978,107.00
Earning per Shares (EPS) NRs. 16.08 22.98 12.38 27.75 40.49
Dividend per Shares (DPS) NRs. 6.75 7.75 - 15.00 21.05
Market Price per Shares (MPPS) NRs. 419.00 350.00 450.00 745.00 1,380.00
Price Earning Ratio Ratio 26.06 15.23 36.35 26.85 34.08
Return on Equity % 3.65 6.54 3.49 4.65 9.22
Return on Investment % 8.02 9.22 5.09 3.02 2.36
Loss Ratio {(Claim Paid + change in
reserve)/ (Net Written Premium)} % 45.47 49.47 68.65 50.30 31.00
Expense Ratio (Underwriting Expense
including Commission/Net Written % 34.18 18.26 14.18 (0.35) 4.00
Premium)
gg{;:)?,i"ed Ratio (Loss Ratio + Expense |, 79.66 67.73 82.84 49.95 35.00
Net Insurance Premium/ Gross % 18.70 19.14 2761 2113 2093
Net Profit/ Gross Insurance Premium % 12.29 16.18 10.68 8.10 12.29
Gross Insurance Premium/ Total Assets | % 25.31 30.92 27.16 20.97 15.57
Investment & loan income/ Total
investment & loan amount % 6.96 213 7.68 549 489
Reinsurance commission/ Gross % 10,97 12.80 11.73 11.70 11.25
Management expenses/ Gross Insur- | g, 13.85 12555 1076 7.63 8.56
pgent Related Expenses/ Gross % 1.06 097 1.15 1.13 0.85
Number of Agents Numbers 148.00 171.00 134.00 181.00 66.00
Number of Branch and Sub-Branch Numbers 27.00 27.00 22.00 17.00 11.00
g%g'gg'eese expenses/ Management o, 60.65 5932 62.58 65.82 7459
Eg‘rﬁt’gﬁe expenses/ Employee NRs. 656,028.28 635,091.51 541,794.49 566,038.39 710,860.25
ga“igta”d'“g Claim Expenses/ Claim o, 70.36 62.00 80.21 62.81 121.09
Qutstanding Claim Expenses/ Number | g 21,482.10 18,633.36 28,292.47 9,571.83 93,285.77
Total Number of Existing Insurance | yympers 59,584.00 61,333.00 58,387.00 44,231.00 35,626.00
Renewed Insurance Policy/ Total
Insurance Policies last year % ) 25.91 47.70 45.03 4237
NumberofClaimInsurancePolicies/
TotalNumberofPolicyOutstanding % 744 250 8.15 1080 28.07
Technical Provisions/ Total Equity % 10.99 15.50 25.80 37.94 40.93
Gross Premium/ Owner Equity % 60.07 83.41 79.21 172.44 159.58
Net Premium/ Equity % 11.23 15.96 21.87 36.44 33.40
Insurable Debt/ Total Equity % 11.17 20.14 42.43 91.07 53.82
Net Premium Growth Rate % (6.42) (15.09) 17.97 2591 0.02
Change in Gross Written Premium % (4.22) 22.51 (9.72) 24.72 25.13
Cession Ratio % 81.30 80.86 72.39 78.87 79.07
NetTechnicalReserve/
AverageofNetClaimPaidforLast3Years % 59.70 10251 97.21 76.96 111.85
Liquidity Ratio % 44,98 53.60 28.81 59.72 18.32
Affiliate Ratio % - - - - -
(Tlé;‘aqlli\‘;fe‘:fq“i“es +Debtors)/Net g, 7.94 9.84 9.74 17.42 17.83
Solvency Margin % 3.63 3.06 1.67 3.78 3.25
Change in Equity % 33.00 16.33 96.54 15.42 14.70
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Annexure IV

DETAILS OF INSURED AMOUNT

Insured Risk Ceded to

Insured Amount against
Existing Insurance Policies

Re-Insurer

Net Insured Risk Retained
by Insurer

CurrentYear PreviousYear CurrentYear PreviousYear CurrentYear PreviousYear CurrentYear Previous Year
Fire 5,840 5,068 67,102,680 61,302,860 47,515,790 43,201,249 19,586,891 18,101,611
Marine 1,316 1,263 6,029,306 15,130,949 3,865,541 9,401,268 2,163,764 5,729,681
Aviation 6 3 72,124 7,814,216 71,873 7,806,402 251 7,814
Motor 37,731 44,380 13,826,123 15,021,398 2,783,371 3,030,033 11,042,752 11,991,365
Engineering 219 199 13,170,525 34,338,716 12,521,233 33,872,965 649,293 465,751
Miscellaneous 5,324 6,287 | 193,064,071| 175,907,247 | 183,485,102| 165,395,014 9,578,969 10,512,233
Cattle and crop 4,418 3,961 734,856 567,229 587,885 453,783 146,971 113,446
Micro 4,730 172 137,636 45,290 1,400 - 136,236 45,290
Total 59,584 61,333 | 294,137,321 | 310,127,906 | 250,832,194 | 263,160,715| 43,305,127 | 46,967,191
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Q¥ | RS o At - _
9 | AR fET At e (fefaeve) - -
9% | STRTAT fae ateer &Tar - _
\CBER
9%.9 drreres fRar fae arer - -
9%.3 FHEATIS! FATT AT AT STFAT - _
ST YU, ¥OY¥ 9 XY 95,30
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T - R

AGHT SAMGH =T &

gk feraor I9 a9 T T

q | s TR dFET Sifew SEreT R,059,44Y 9,2R,98R
3 |EHfeE drwrer dFATa Sifew ST

T ATF. B R,R¥¥,%0% 34%5,%3%

T AT q. e 39%5,%3% 3,49%,R0%

3% AT FfE 3,49%,R0% q,009,00¥

S 5,559, Y43 YR¥3,EUR

3 | HreY AT AT SifEH ST GRAR, ¥y R4,¥90,3\%

¥ | giiafey qar SheR STHTER AHHT AEH ST 3%¥R,5%R 9,599 9y 3

Y |Ears STHTRT AGETS SiEH e 3%R,449 9,30%,3R¥

s |fafag Smrer smr Sifew sErer RR,6%3,3%1 IRR&R,35%

© | T JAT ATAT ATATRT ATHAG SATGH SIST 3,433,543 3,953 %90

c | STHTR AET AfEH T A EASE RO%, XY

A AELECEREE] ¥Y 933,513

w - ‘.2\(

ATrET / FHTATSE & il [dfag @=ee ®

%4, feraar Iq a9 T a

9 | Ter@T T AT YRIETF g - -

R | AT I A IF FEAT @ - -

3 | FUeEe I At AT s - -

¥ | U@ T ATl WA TRTE a7 @ - -

S q=

(%) HFAE HeaUT - ATZTHATH - -

(@) YR ThREAIR - -

() B ARIAAR - -

(=) foIst Eres Twfa qar o= - -

= - -
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wfdd T 06k G HEU § Tq AR 008 WA ATE 3 TAGTHS! Gelid Ao
faeeor 7% a9 FFOAE qEAs afiqer g 3008 W WEE 3 TAH SeHare qid
g |

(@) fafa faeaRures TR &l AR AHCH F@r AT T Jeod TRYH
S | T AfgUHT e A et qren R T TReH 8 )

q. foir faRor qamdeT smEReEs

fewrem Se SRitee FHl fafthedr fafog faaweeTaelt S gwqa afiewr g o
ﬁﬁa@mﬁ&%@mwaﬁmmwwwmmmﬂwm
TR (Accrual) FTERWT SRETEA T AT U uF @ 0wl dwm afHfTar
fAde™, ¥l U9 R0%3, AUE JGME qA7 I+ gASd I@THH, qa7 SWedd: /e
@ fagrdeedl AgaaT Ae T TR A |

I ATEE ThSrard GG J9d fafadr qfqagad = (NFRS) ¥ T &rudieearg
aqT.a. Qoemwéﬁqwnﬁmwﬁwﬁmm (NFRS) &TTETX
A Feoee TR TR g |

Ul WAl WA FT hgl T GEEUA g | U Hed e
A @G Hed d9T 6l @G H ANH EEigd IE @Eee diel TuH G |

3. T & A

feor geafaeedl g™ #E AF U4, j04c ATER qAT HEH, FREET AHE (iR
a7 FRe=d, FFIeX qaT gl ey gweon), A= TR T ATE R0, Y,
%tiﬁswmmmwﬁwmmwwﬁwa|

qhadY FFEIAAT GUH @odls Y TU60 q9e@d T g™ HENRUS g |

¥ gofebe TIRA qeftee qarel q@rg A

€ 4,000 TEAFH AAMEEATE Goilhd K @d oed TUH g |
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Y. ATIPT HGET AT

ATH U, 04c & AGTaT We AR AT US| §
HWWHW@@WWWWW%%FW@WR
(Deferred Tax) HATHI el ol TI'F('QW g | T BT FITCI'%T (Deferred TaxAssets)q'F%'ﬁ

Wmmwwwwwmﬂwamqﬁmwwwm
I &I

q@IHT T TR G |

& T AETgT A

T @TER] G-l FFIAI ST GUATTHl e el aidy fefe 8™ aaifeada

Af sraeread TR G |

(k) "NIC'I H(Gbl(ohl EEGEERCIEEUEERCHH "NIC'I H(Gbl(ohl STHTAd 9TSd BUTIAHT 4T

fAfde FFIAIH TATIICHIITAT TUS AMHATe ATgd oA (Face Value)

aTWn—arqwa—rr‘a—@r HIEl Heg®l HedTgd TTRUH g |

@) Wﬁwwﬁmaﬁﬁwwmwaﬁ:ww
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WWWWW%WWQTWWHWW
ST WUH T AT AUTeTd €T (Provision) TRUH G |
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qwc I FHATS ATHRI A B9 da7 O gy [E9redr Jawad @96l 9497

T TR G
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Ao TAGITAIH! (Cash Basis) ATHTAT of@Tge TS & | ¢ A€ Giitq (Hiqww=r
aﬁmawgwﬁnﬁﬁﬁ:&rw&gmw&gwﬁaﬁm&wwﬁmanmaﬁm
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R. TAAHT HHIA AR AGTFA AT
AT FHFYAETE ITeq HHLAATE @ Gl a7 G HFaAiare R Jredial A
T AT SRETEE RUE g |

90. A AT AGFT qqT qSHiE AN

g gfufaer e afaqar W @, FAT AT qFATE AUHT ATATS qEEATeT

WWW&TFWHWHTWWW@EWWW

Wwammﬁﬁwmwﬁﬁzaﬁ (NetWorth) T A¥Ter@d T+
Fite o GTHTHAS Terg AR AT EHEel AR "EES AT el A
feqraT aiewie T ANTE g |

9. ol A€ i
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g |

R T G q(SHiE el

T FfAfaer Meeer ATIAT FaYT @96l Q0 Uided ThH ATHT AEE  EamEdr
= I@g dd R0 YA I@AAS gealad dWT FAaHEH JAH dHTLeRHT Afandl
EFWQWWWWWWWWWW@WWW
o feqmEH argwIE T TRUHE g |

3. AT T SR " wEred A

FFIAA AEH AN TUAT &I SHAE THISTH GThAT TG99 THH q91 9l

ﬁwﬁﬁaﬁw&wwwawwwwwﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁ@wﬁwan
T SHFP TEIFE AT FHATGS THT FHE WATAF T AT @F arIad

JEEYT TNTH S |
¥, AT TG AT A FTSAT AQ@IgH A
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Wiﬁquwud»lmmwwwwqﬁwwéﬁmwmw

FEHE TH TG |

9&. FHAWT SATET T (&7 FUT FI=4qT M

FHATART IJUSH qdT o7 a19d HawT Al (Accrual) ATITXHT o@TgH T ANTH
T BITHT TEAT TS |

90, YFTAT ATATHT AT AT

TAfaAFeRale AT Hrh AT Y INUH faq 99 feama oq gfaerds feqmaer
THTIE FATH! FaAT TUH G |

95, AIAET G q@IgT AT
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fodra fraoren vt aEr T feadies

9. qWIET faces
9 IR AT RN g At A g | .
&0) W‘ﬂ'ﬁ’l’ ‘Q\I%’IWT (Underwriting Commitments) -gd |
Z) HW@ Aedid Wl Jehde dMe JUL Al GLhl ¥ dIHEd qNdcd @I
TH ST |
5 AW A fMEE qhere GEuE wEmed g |
3) AT TRT - |

R VTN T STl JTET A A HEATE TN Faeva T ATERET

AT AT, R0¥Q BT (AW QU(H) @1 AT AFRT Fied T ETElR AT
ARCTAT FFAAHT DT 94 TTUqAd g ASA (@A qEl AT FTET TRTH G |

3 S gRtaar et A qor farees - 8 |
¥, AT, T a9 R gRafae it Ak giqesar - € )

A AT ATHT FURE WAF [HIIE a0 & 9%,%¥0,65303 (W.AFX d6h) SaH AaTe

TuEr F |

Y. TG qREET e @iRe T aenaeed 9

o) @ig TNUH qEqiael @iicd qred A9THT - B |
o) TN AMNCH FERAR GHEA I AR - G|

% I9 A quRd IRTH e qon ot feat fager faeawor qauer s
(@) JEaUARE 99 TAET TIIPR G |

FIfoTsT FehEe Wedl e 9,95,34,00,000 q,3%,24,00,000
farepTeT Sepeeept Hedl faard %,34,00,000 §,5%,00,000
fa FFITEsdr Heal fard 4,0%,00,000 9Y,00,000
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e AaTUERT EFITUWT I HIEh SrRladl [qHeE @ T |
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M) WWWWW%WWWWW|
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T) UeAWad feel gEEAtgd dWebdrs [l TRIE G |

AYAGH T qiepl G AeH |

<Rt geier Ftnw SRt =t (Paid in advance), e Tt g |t
(Call in arrears) ¥ e RSN R T FEpE TIRTEHT A f@xr - S |

foror Siee Twafaer i e adew T g9 afdw oY &< (Amortization)
AfgUPT A fqERT - B

T AF q¥ Ta RITFAT €.299% L ¥& AIAGH NRURH! B T T HHSA
T 90,5% 43 G2 ATTH! THA A ATIHT AL TRTH |

TYARAT AT AT AEPT BRI (90 - S |

AQHT SGH T

foftae o a@E@r @e ST eddl Lo GiUd TEH HEHI  SIEGH  SAEwTHT IR
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T a0 qAEE H AT ATET TATST TR G

FHEa gaee @l FRER (Related Party Transactions)

TG FFAG] I ATETIAHT PG Aehe, HAdeE T TN FEF AdEkd
aq g A

Hews % HS - B
WEFWTW - EEIEES
ﬁﬂﬁﬁaﬁmw - EEIEES

qT T T - EEISED

T FATH A - EEIEE3

IR AT S - qo®  (HFdA)
et A= - THE FEEE AgEkd

HET eI TIiIehTesdls JaTd TRUH! qRATTHE Tar gaumes:
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W§|Mﬁmﬁwﬂmmaﬁrﬁwﬁmﬁmwammaﬁrm
FA T Thl G |

140



HIMALAYAN GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED

HE SaLATIH] GRIIRNRT F AUH BRI
T TAT J&I ATEIAH] TIGPIge [ AUl Fa [ 78 a9 (9 @=ige

Annual Report 2076/77

Gkl g |
THH & AT
FTAATCRT [T a9 a9 T Ay
TRl qhIHl 90,43,400 2 92,400

g g™ qdqr gieer

T FTEAR TEIEEE @ A F THERH FRER TATH |

9. ST 4T Oob

FA AW Yoeddl § IqUd AT Yo ATqd AW AWIGATE WHAT TH TQ dq@rgA TRIH
a|ﬂ#2175wqﬂ%ﬁwmﬁ3rmﬁﬂ@wnﬁammaﬁﬂmmm%m

o

g9 FErgT TRUE g |

R, FHE AraTE laar

FHATY A iagmarag THH

R T[T AT AT qiEd

ERUH FT |

0Y.0 /049 5,00,00 000 3,00,00,000 3,00,00,000

Q0% /O%Y 9§,00,00 000 9R,00,00 000 %,30,00000 | 990¢, & FMH AT qq qUH!
J0%Y / 0%% 9%,00,00,000 43,00,00,000 90,05,00,000 | $0y EHYE T STA HTH

Q0%% /090 40,00,00 000 3Y,00,00,000 90,05,00,000 | Yavdqd T [HIUEEATAT G TLH
090 / 0\ 40,0000 000 QY,00,00,000 RY,00,00 000 | 9¥5 TEFYE AT ATA HUSHT

099 /09% 40,00 00 000 R%,84 00,000 Q%,94,00,000 | 9 o FMIT AT 99 HUH
093/ 093 40,00 00 000 33,90,00,000 33,90,00,000 | R0% & FMI AT I HUH
093 ,/09Y 3,00,00,00 000 q,03,93,00 000 35,4R,00,000 | 0% o AW AT 99 TTH
309% /09y, 2,00,00,00 000 q,0%,93,00 000 q,0%,9%,00,000 | 95%.%9% o EHYS AL ATU TR
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Y. FHARN AT FIE4T
TG ATdE qTHT GAAP T NFRS Wed GAAP Tl ATHI FHH WUH GAAP ATARH HT
aﬁawraamwﬂoqﬁramﬁwms 9% 358 FHATH AME FEET T

TH G |

W. Profit Commission

qAfdHFaTe RACEEL FARHGT YT UG Profit Commission ATRETHI aTed TR o |
waﬁ“w 9 Profit Commission aT9d %5 9599 THEHE T TR G |
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0.

.

T &Y (Deferred Tax)
WA F GO T ARcAl AUA1 ATME 3], 098 BN AR FEGER WH G o

TR & T (S1fe)

foamur g oy T qY
WEA H G (Deferred Tax Assets)

feorx gt

ST = q,%9,%% 55 9,39,3%,555
T amma s 29,59,394 99,55,455
AT AUH T ATHRAT TATUH! IR ( [BNR) AT -
SIET TRUHT e 95,%%,5%N 90,93 2%
FeAHT T e ¥,33,04%

T WA T G (Deferred Tax Assets) q,5%,R8,R]0 9,%9,5%,350
WA # T (Deferred Tax Liabilities)

feax gt (R95,359) (¥9555)
faeprer o frfgaw

SHAT @ Y W(Deferred Tax Liabilities) (R,9%,35Y9) (¥9555)
T W aX gE 9,5%,5958 9,59,35, %33

THeqe JqTl aTad FEeqT AT Tl THHAT W L fEErE TN g |

TEMIIT ST B

FFOACT AETEIiel AN qAfEHT T aed] TUHE g | J9 audl ahEe aehis
femmadT W@ TEAH Q0 U ® o¥ 334qE AW AT g9 T AL A I095/098 H
AIE HATRAHT & 499,495 SFAT 9UH G |

S B
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WWWW?WMWWW
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FIATAHT TR Tp qY DA =S AP I SAeqeprelie X 9T ey ufe
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qIT 1 THAAT ATA BT FHA T Fhl gtvﬁafr 3.0y Ylqerd ¥ 00%0,500 TG ATHE AT
qiafq a7 FFAHI AERT GAETE G T 990 faaeor et g |

R, Auw fafaw afgag e (NFRS)
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H dmr wfefa gro que fafor gfeese NFRS_ @Rl fmm #EqdieRers anfde g
Rowey|9y 3 wfMard wgHT @ ARuwer a9 ad u9fq @7 A1 e gg fafaw faawor @w

TRTH 3 |
sfi  Fmr gfafaer fafd kowwiokqy TaEr MR FWiN® g9 w0 aTde
Y 09¥|9Y I FWT FAIGT AT TR [ASET AW FEET T dWddl g

faeor gratey fagew awieH Nepal Standards on Auditing -800 Special Consideration - Audit of
Financial Statement Prepared in Accordance with Special Purpose Frameworks 3Tdild §%f QT

gfdeed afeq wr dtafaar fEader afr a1 fafqg fqeaeor @R TReer g o

098 [T ATHE AT THIAT T RfAaw e FIS-9R # AWRA S T
FHAET HEW 9 A TG THT TP IHH T 99 ¥3 105 T2 F+9 AIXT F=<HId
AT TR FHESA TRTH F |

M. Fie RifFw aaa 099 ATHTE AT TRIAT %.9,9¥,1%9,300 T 099 HEwr g

k.

9,

35,

Y AYEE 3. R.30,59,500 FAT T T T, ¥,04 43,500 M qeperT
WUHHT STEEH 3,%3¥ {1 T 3. 3¥,%,00,000 WU B | A fowr afAdra
RN AR AFSTSTR STAftrept T 7.4, 39,04% FaTr reehl AAHorT e
A TRTH G |

HEPET IR FWT fo. are Tt frfraest S =Ry e SO .
9%,95,23, %% ATIAT ] ARTI fafae SARIHT FHEE THCH S |

YaTenE e FAAHT qOUI T W G |
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qIrEr, SIYEr J97 IHb FATAIEE

BIRGUNJ
HARI GOPAL SHRESTHA
Mahabir Sthan, Main Road
051-530097

BIRATNAGAR
NIRANJAN SHRESTHA

Sanimandir, Hanuman Das Road

021-531848

POKHARA

HARI PRASAD SHRESTHA
Newroad, Pokhara
061-535200

KATHMANDU
ANUJ LAKHEY
Lazimpat, Kathmandu
01-4442405

BUTWAL

SHANKER SHRESTHA
Rajmarga, Chauraha, Butwal
Tel: 071-437266

LALITPUR
ANJU SHRESTHA
Ekantakuna, Lalitpur
Tel: 01-5426044

NARAYANGARH
AMRIT KHADKA
Mainroad, Narayangarh
Tel: 056-531010

BANEPA

UMESH PRADHAN
Char Dobato, Banepa
Tel: 011-660408

CHAUTARA

NIRAJAN SHRESTHA
Chautara, Sindhupalchowk
Tel: 011-620250

SIMARA
SHANKAR PAUDEL
Simra, Bara

Tel: 053-520148

DAMAULI
LAXMAN BHUMI
Safa Sadak, Damauli
Tel: 065-562683

DAMAK

SUMAN DULAL
Ganatantra Chowk, Damak
Tel: 023-584982

BHAIRAHAWA

RAJESH SHRESTHA
Siddharthanagar, Bhairahawa
Tel: 071-520023

DHANGADHI
DHIRENDRA JOSHI
Dhangadhi

Tel: 091-416163

NEPALGUNJ
BASANTA RAJ GHIMIRE
Nepalgunj

Tel: 081-411150

SURKHET
SANTOSH THAPA
Surkhet

Tel: 083-522567
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BHAKTAPUR
SHARAD LAL SHRESTHA
Kausaltar, Bhaktapur

Tel: 6639720

GONGABU
SUDHAN POUDEL
Gongabu

Tel: 01-4357099

CHABAHIL
RUSMITA MASKEY
Chabahil

Tel: 01- 4478980

BIRTAMODE
SUSIL THAPA
Birtamode

Tel: 023 -540787

BAJRABARAHI
BIBEK SIJAPATI
Bajrabarahi

Tel: 01 -5572943

NAKKHU

MANOJ KUMAR MAHARJAN
Nakhu

Tel: 01-6639720

KAWASOTI

THAKUR PARAJULI
Ghimire Plaza, Nawalparasi
Tel: 078-541194
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